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13. Investments 

13.1. Company – ownership interests and goodwill 

 

  SALIC SAEPAR CIA. SAÚDE Total 
Balance as at 01/01/2017     2,132,194   2,437,679       1,228,443       5,798,316  
Capital increase (b)     38,628    59,620  23,498  121,746  
Capital decrease (f)   -      (1,181,857)     -     (1,181,857) 
Transfer of shares (e) (f)  1,181,857  -       231,053      1,412,910  
Capital gain and/or loss (d)     (3,468)     (1,431)    1,063   (3,836) 
Dividends and interest on capital (165,764)    (287,629)   (104,873)   (558,266) 
Upstream effect of the reversal of unclaimed dividends     306     106      -     412  
Share of profit of investees (a)  398,229       233,297     292,385  923,911  
Equity adjustment  - reflex effects (c)      12,040     18,993     9,193   40,226  
     Gains and (losses) not realized in financial assets available for sale      14,379      16,861      9,181    40,421  
     Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension plan     (2,595)    (1,448)    12    (4,031) 
     Capital gain     256      3,580      -      3,836  
Balance as at 12/31/2017    3,594,022    1,278,778       1,680,762       6,553,562  
Capital increase (b)      41,894    38,333  27,700       107,927  
Capital gain and/or loss (d)  (6) -        (100) (106) 
Dividends and interest on capital   (52,096)  (15,000)     (32,588)      (99,684) 
Share of profit of investees (a)   179,546    69,888       102,871      352,305  
Equity adjustment  - reflex effects (c)   (20,455)   (7,036)      (12,696) (40,187) 
     Gains and (losses) not realized in financial assets available for sale   (20,530)   (7,067)      (12,696)      (40,293) 
     Capital gain 75       31      -     106  
Balance as at 06/30/2018    3,742,905    1,364,963       1,765,949       6,873,817  

 
 
 

    Company        
    06/30/2018        

 

Description         SALIC        SAEPAR        CIA. SAÚDE        Total        
 

Assets         8,852,321        1,394,741        10,020,557         
Liabilities         3,825,769        29,778        4,888,066         
Shareholders' equity         5,026,552        1,364,963      5,132,491         
Net revenue         1,712,604        17,765        7,463,441         
Net income         241,328        69,888        298,972         
Share of profit of investees (%)         74.42%        100.00%        34.41%         
Carrying amount of investment         3,740,936        1,364,963        1,765,949        6,871,848        
Goodwill         1,969        -        -        1,969        
Number of common shares         119        2,924        22,825,602         
Number of preferred shares         236        -        6,273,518         
 

 
 

 
    Company        
    12/31/2017        

 

Description         SALIC        SAEPAR        CIA. SAÚDE        Total        
 

Assets         8,749,576        1,344,910      9,406,518         
Liabilities         3,919,236        66,132        4,521,847         
Shareholders' equity         4,830,340        1,278,778        4,884,671         
Net revenue         3,358,752        36,293        13,581,731         
Net income         601,571        233,297        894,297         
Share of profit of investees (%)         74.36%        100.00%        34.41%         
Carrying amount of investment         3,592,053        1,278,778        1,680,762        6,551,593        
Goodwill         1,969        -        -        1,969        
Number of common shares         116        2,841        22,474,435         
Number of preferred shares         235        -        6,158,611         
 

 

 
(a)    The non-controlling interest recorded in the Company’s profit or loss comprises the adjustments to the equity of its investees as a result of the harmonization of accounting policies, 
when necessary; 
(b)    The Company increased the capital of SAEPAR with interest on capital on April 27, 2018, in the amount of R$38,333, upon the issue of 83 new common shares, all registered, with 
no par value, at the issue price of R$461,846.80 (reais) per share. The Company increased the capital of CIA. SAÚDE with interest on capital on May 21, 2018, in the amount of 
R$27,700, upon the issue of 351,167 new common shares and 114,907 new preferred shares, all registered, with no par value, at the issue price of R$59.43 (reais) per share. On March 
29, 2018, the Company increased the capital of SALIC with interest on capital, in the amount of R$41,894, with the issue of three new common shares and one new preferred share, all 
registered, with no par value, at the issue price of R$10,473,453.62 (reais) per share. The Company increased the capital of SALIC and SAEPAR with interest on capital on April 18, 
2017, in the amounts of R$38,628 and R$59,620, respectively, with the issue of two new common shares and two new preferred shares in SALIC, all registered, with no par value, at the 
issue price of R$9,656,878.90 (reais) per share, and 66 new common shares in SAEPAR, all registered, with no par value, at the issue price of R$903,326.65 (reais) per share. On 
December 22, 2017, the Company increased the capital of CIA. SAÚDE with interest on capital, in the amount of R$23,498, with the issue of 304,450 new common shares and 99,620 
new preferred shares, all registered, with no par value, at the issue price of R$58.15 (reais) per share; 
(c)    Refer to amounts of subsidiaries and associates, which affect the parent company upstream, in the moment of the recognition of the non-controlling interest. They comprise the 
following: (1) unrealized gains and/or losses of financial assets classified into available for sale, which affect the equity of subsidiaries; (2) gains and/or losses recorded because of the 
change in the interest in companies in which the subsidiaries invest; and (3) actuarial gains and/or losses related to defined benefit plans of the management members of subsidiaries, 
recorded according to the provisions of CPC 33 – Employee Benefits; 
(d)    Refer to capital gains and/or losses on the direct investments of the Company, where the change in investment occurred disproportionally, changing the ownership interest of the 
Company in the investee; 
(e) On August 23, 2017, SAEPAR reduced its capital by R$1,181,857,at carrying amount, as at the base date July 31, 2017, because it was considered excessive, without changing 

the number of shares comprising capital, and it was settled with the transfer of 120 preferred shares in the subsidiary SALIC by SAEPAR to the Company; and  
(f) The increase in the ownership interest held in the subsidiary CIA. SAÚDE was made by the distribution of the interim dividends approved by SAEPAR on August 21, 2017, in the 

amount of R$231,053, at carrying amount, being settled by the transfer of the totality of shares that SAEPAR held in CIA. SAÚDE, comprising 3,116,899 common shares and 
1,110,941 preferred shares. 
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13.2. Consolidated 

Description         06/30/2018        12/31/2017        
 

Share of profit of investees              
   Original amount         66,542        121,808        
   Goodwill         1,106        1,106        
Real estate investments            7,593        7,619        
Other            1,757        1,684        
 

Total            76,998        132,217        
 

13.2.1. Ownership interests 

The following investments in associates are shown in the consolidated financial statements: 

 

 
Caixa Capitalização 

S.A. - CAIXACAP        

Sharecare Brasil 
Serviços de 

Consultoria LTDA        Total        
 

Balance as at 01/01/2017         97,449        7,572        105,021        
Share of profit of investees         33,829        7,445        41,274        
Equity adjustment - Gains and (losses) not realized in financial assets available for sale         11,949        -        11,949        
Additional dividends paid         (22,498)        (4,320)        (26,818)        
Proposed dividends         (7,899)        (613)        (8,512)    
Balance as at 12/31/2017         112,830        10,084        122,914        
Share of profit of investees         15,245        1,648        16,893        
Equity adjustment - Gains and (losses) not realized in financial assets available for sale         (19,149)        -        (19,149)        
Addtional dividends paid         -        (1,454)        (1,454)        
Interim dividends         (51,556)        -        (51,556)        
 

Balance as at 06/30/2018         57,370        10,278        67,648        

 
   06/30/2018        
 

Description         
Caixa Capitalização S.A. 

- CAIXACAP        

Sharecare Brasil 
Serviços de 

Consultoria LTDA        Total        
 

Assets         3,160,309        27,435         
Liabilities         2,928,125        8,717         
Shareholders' equity         232,184        18,718         
Net revenue         658,736        38,293         
Net income         72,227        3,363         
Share of profit of investees (%)         24.50%        49.00%         
Carrying amount of investment         57,370        9,172        66,542        
Goodwill         -        1,106        1,106        
Number of common shares / quotas         1,960        5,079,665         
 

 
   12/31/2017        
 

Description         
Caixa Capitalização S.A. 

- CAIXACAP        

Sharecare Brasil 
Serviços de 

Consultoria LTDA        Total        
 

Assets         3,306,743        27,259         
Liabilities         2,858,197        8,938         
Shareholders' equity         448,546        18,321         
Net revenue         1,212,831        68,282         
Net income         135,749        15,194         
Share of profit of investees (%)         24.50%        49.00%         
Carrying amount of investment         112,830        8,978        121,808        
Goodwill         -        1,106        1,106        
Number of common shares         1,960        5,079,665         
 

 

14. Intangible assets 

In the consolidated financial statements, Intangible Assets are represented as shown in the following table: 

        Consolidated        
 

     
Software development and 

license costs (a)        Goodwill (b)        Other        Total        
 

Cost                 
    Balance as at 01/01/2017         294,554        46,779        3        341,336        
    Addition         50,057        -        -        50,057        
    Write-Off         (7,269)        -        -        (7,269)        
    Balance as at 12/31/2017         337,342        46,779        3        384,124        
Accumulated depreciation                 
    Balance as at 01/01/2017         (138,607)        -        -        (138,607)        
    Write-Off         6,365        -        -        6,365        
    Amortization         (34,572)        -        -        (34,572)        
    Balance as at 12/31/2017         (166,814)        -        -        (166,814)        
Residual balance as of 12/31/2017             170,528        46,779        3        217,310        
Estimated economic life             5 and 10 years           
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        Consolidated        

 

     
Software development and 

license costs (a)        Goodwill (b)        Other        Total        
 

Cost                 
    Balance as at 12/31/2017         337,342        46,779        3        384,124        
    Addition         18,158        -        -        18,158        
    Write-Off         (11,207)        -        -        (11,207)        
    Balance as at 06/30/2018         344,293        46,779        3        391,075        
Accumulated depreciation                 
    Balance as at 12/31/2017         (166,814)        -        -        (166,814)        
    Write-Off         10,402        -        -        10,402        
    Amortization         (12,808)        -        -        (12,808)        
    Other         37        -        -        37        
    Balance as at 06/30/2018         (169,183)        -        -        (169,183)        
Residual balance as of 06/30/2018             175,110        46,779        3        221,892        
Estimated economic life             5 and 10 years           
 

 
 
(a) Software development and license costs 

Mainly represent expenditures with the development of technology infrastructure, applications, improvements in the website of Sul 
América companies and operations, development of own systems, and expenditures with the acquisition of software licenses used in 
operations. 

 

(b) Goodwill 

Goodwill refers to amounts recognized in excess of the fair value in the acquisition of the control of companies. The Company tests for 
impairment the goodwill arising from business combination by evaluating the value in use annually or when there is indication of 
impairment. The key assumptions on which the Company based its future cash flow projections and exercised its judgment are the 
projections of operational results for five years, based on the growth rate in the current year. The flows are based on the strategic plans 
approved by the Company’s Board of Directors. The analysis of impairment loss was made by using the discounted future cash flow 
model. The Company’s Management concluded that there was no impairment of goodwill as at December 31, 2017, and no material fact 
that indicates the need for a new calculation in the first half.  
 

15. Accounts payable 
   Company         Consolidated        
 

Description         Notes        06/30/2018        12/31/2017        06/30/2018        12/31/2017        
 

Trade payables         15.1        1,824        185,026        190,157        443,387        
Labor liabilities          -        -        69,480        52,790        
Taxes and contributions payable         15.2        8,603        37,638        272,090        295,131        
Capitalização         17.2        -        -        638,303        624,900        
Managed health          -        -        224,929        219,573        
Other trade payables         15.3        698        13,206     141,251        102,671        
 

Total          11,125        235,870        1,536,210        1,738,452        
Current          11,125        235,870        1,504,720        1,705,982        
Non-current          -        -        31,490   32,470        
 

 
 

15.1. Obligations payable 

  Company         Consolidated        
 

Description         06/30/2018        12/31/2017        06/30/2018        12/31/2017        
 

Tax refinance - REFIS         -        -        58,856        64,525        
Dividends and interest on capital payable         1,785        184,940        2,017        185,751        
Profit sharing         -        -        36,115        75,366        
Fees and bonus payable         -        -        29,553        49,443        
Private pension         -        -        15,113        14,400        
Others         39        86        48,503        53,902        
 

Total         1,824        185,026        190,157        443,387        
Current         1,824        185,026        163,843        413,079        
Non-current         -        -        26,314        30,308        

 
REFIS 

In November 2009, the subsidiary SULACAP (acquired in April 2013) joined REFIS, established by Act 11.941/2009, in order to pay the 
principal amounts due mainly related to COFINS, CSLL and IRPJ in installments, which were in dispute at either administrative and/or 
judicial levels. The total amount of obligations on adherence date was R$20,411, net of the reduction of expected benefits. The installment 
plan estimates the payment in up to 180 equal and monthly installments, monthly adjusted based on the SELIC rate variation. 
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In December 2013, the subsidiaries SULACAP, CIA. SAÚDE, SULASEG and SALIC joined a new version of REFIS, established by Act 
12.865/2013, in order to pay in 30 installments and settle with escrow deposit the amounts related to CSLL, IRPJ, INSS and fines imposed 
by the ANS, and refund to the Unified Health System (SUS), which were in dispute at either administrative and/or judicial levels. The total 
amount of obligations on the adherence date was R$66,338, net of the reduction of expected benefits, which includes the amount of 
R$14,204, recorded in current liabilities that shall be paid by the conversion into income of the INSS-related escrow deposits and fines 
imposed by the ANS, and refund to the Unified Health System (SUS). In April 2016, CSLL deposits of CIA. SAÚDE in the amount of 
R$4,159 were converted into income. On April 29, 2016, SULACAP, CIA. SAÚDE and SALIC settled the last installment. Only the 
conversion into income of the proceedings 201151010139791 regarding the SULACAP’s CSLL, and the INSS proceedings, the fines 
imposed by the ANS, and the refunds to SUS are pending. 

In July 2014, the subsidiaries SANTA CRUZ, SALIC and CIA. SAÚDE adhered to the reopening of the REFIS established by Act 
12.973/2014, aimed at paying in cash and with escrow deposits, the amounts related to the IRPJ and CSLL, which were in dispute at either 
administrative and/or judicial level. The total amount of R$8,347 included on the adherence date (net of reduction of expected benefits) 
shall be paid by means of the conversion into income of the recorded escrow deposits. The escrow deposits related to the proceedings 
9700881067 of subsidiary SANTA CRUZ were already converted into income and withdrawn, and, accordingly, the amounts were fully 
written-off. In relation to the subsidiary CIA. SAÚDE, the deposits have already been converted into income and partially withdrawn, and 
only the withdrawal of the remaining balance of this proceeding is pending. In relation to the proceedings 9600191948, the subsidiaries 
SALIC, SANTA CRUZ and CIA. SAÚDE are waiting for the conversion into income, and withdrawal of deposited amounts. 

On November 16, 2017, the subsidiaries SULAMED and CIA. SAÚDE adhered to the Program of Regularization of Non-Tax Debits (PRD) 
established by the Provisional Measure (MP) 780, converted into Act 13.494/2017, with the scope for the installment payment of the 
amounts related to the debits arising from the fines imposed by the ANS, which were in dispute at the administrative and judicial levels. The 
installment payment program provides for the payment of 60 monthly and successive installments, monthly adjusted by the change in the 
country’s base rate (SELIC), the first installment payment corresponding to 20% of the consolidated debt, with no reduction, and the 
installment payment of the remaining balance with a 60% reduction on interests and late payment fine. The total amount on adherence 
date was R$20,452, and it will be paid by means of monthly issued payment forms. 

On June 30, 2018, the obligations are recognized in “Accounts payable”, of which R$32,542 (R$34,217 as at December 31, 2017) in 
current liabilities and R$26,314 (R$30,308 as at December 31, 2017) in non-current liabilities. 

 

15.2. Taxes and contributions 

  Company         Consolidated        
 

Description         06/30/2018        12/31/2017        06/30/2018        12/31/2017        
 

Corporate income tax - IRPJ         6,098        1,958        36,392        13,340        
Withholding income tax         92        7,211        15,739        58,531        
Financial operations tax - IOF         -        -        84,308        78,129        
Service tax - ISS         -        -        46,125        39,552        
Social contribution on net income - CSLL         2,199        714        21,145        5,522        
PIS and COFINS         78        27,631        19,638    58,661        
Other         136        124        48,743        41,396        
 

Total         8,603        37,638        272,090        295,131        
Current         8,603        37,638        272,090        295,131        
 

 

15.3. Other accounts payable 

  Company         Consolidated        
 

Description         06/30/2018        12/31/2017        06/30/2018        12/31/2017        
 

Trade payables - Suppliers         105        12,604        15,803        33,434        
Securities payable         1        -        19,598        221        
Trade payables - Exclusive funds         -        -        17,298        11,580        
Diverse accounts payable         592        602        88,552        57,436        
 

Total         698        13,206        141,251        102,671        
Current         698        13,206        141,206        102,500        
Non-current         -        -        45        171        

 

16. Loans and financing 

The breakdown of the Company’s loans and financing balances and their main characteristics are as follows in the indicated periods: 

  Company         Consolidated        
 

Description         06/30/2018        12/31/2017        06/30/2018        12/31/2017        
 

CCB - Banco do Brasil (a)         161,564        160,612        161,564        160,612        
Debentures (b)         1,298,212        1,426,176        1,298,212        1,426,176        
Acquisition costs         (4,458)        (5,346)        (4,458)        (5,346)        
Financial leasing (c)         -        -        5,803        3,091        
 

Total         1,455,318        1,581,442        1,461,121        1,584,533        
Current         132,848        298,826        135,594        299,988        
Non-current         1,322,470        1,282,616        1,325,527        1,284,545        
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(a) Bank Credit Note (CCB) – Banco do Brasil 
 

 CCB         
 

Characteristics         Banco do Brasil         
 

Amount of securities         R$200,000         
Issue date         12/29/2015         
Final maturity (a)         01/10/2021         
Inflation adjustment         Without adjustment         
Interests (a)         113.0% CDI         
Interest payment         Three-month period         
Amortization         10% in the first year, 10% in the second year and 80% in maturity         
Collateral         No collaterals         
 

 

(a) Change in due date and interest rate in view of the CCB renegotiation on March 1, 2018. 

 
 

(b) Debentures 
  3rd Issue         4th Issue        5th Issue        
 

Characteristics         1st Series        2nd Series        1st Series        2nd Series        Single series        
 

Convertibility         Simple nonconvertible 
debentures        

Simple nonconvertible 
debentures        

Simple nonconvertible 
debentures        

Simple nonconvertible 
debentures        

Simple nonconvertible 
debentures        

Sort         Unsecured        Unsecured        Unsecured        Unsecured        Unsecured        
Type and form         Registered and book 

debentures, without 
issue of certificates or 

receipts        

Registered and book 
debentures, without 

issue of certificates or 
receipts        

Registered and book 
debentures, without issue 
of certificates or receipts        

Registered and book 
debentures, without issue 
of certificates or receipts        

Registered and book 
debentures, without issue 
of certificates or receipts        

Amount of securities         37,000 simple 
debentures        

13,000 simple 
debentures        

206,320 simple 
debentures        

293,680 simple 
debentures        

500,000 simple 
debentures        

Face value         10        10        1        1        1        
Issue date         May 16, 2014        May 16, 2014        December 13, 2016        December 13, 2016        October 27, 2017        
Initial maturity         May 15, 2017        May 15, 2020        Single installment        December 13, 2019        October 27, 2021        
Final maturity         May 15, 2019        May 15, 2022        December 13, 2019        December 13, 2021        October 27, 2022        
Monetary adjustment         Without adjustment        IPCA        Without adjustment        Without adjustment        Without adjustment        
Interests         108.25% CDI        IPCA+7.41% p.a.        111.70% CDI        114.00% CDI        108.00% CDI        
Interest payment         Six-month periods        Annual        Six-month periods        Six-month periods        Six-month periods        
Amortization         In three annual 

installments        
In three annual 

installments        In one installment        
In three annual 

installments        In two annual installments        
Amortization dates         2017, 2018 and 2019        2020, 2021 and 2022        2019        2019, 2020 and 2021        2021 and 2022        
Renegotiation         None        None        None        None        None        
Early redemption         Only through the 

voluntary early 
redemption offer        

Only through the 
voluntary early 

redemption offer        

Only through the 
voluntary early 

redemption offer        

Only through the 
voluntary early 

redemption offer        

Only through the 
voluntary early 

redemption offer        
Voluntary Early Redemption Offer        The Company can 

perform it at any time        
The Company can 

perform it at any time        
The Company can 

perform it at any time        
The Company can 

perform it at any time        
The Company can 

perform it at any time        
 

 

(c) Finance lease 
 

In July 2016, the Company entered into a finance lease on software and data processing equipment in the amount of R$5,457 for the period of 42 months, without guarantees and at an 
interest rate of 16% p.a. In September 2017, it entered into another finance lease on software and data processing equipment in the amount of R$3,952 for the period of 36 months, 
without guarantee and with installments adjusted by the IGP-M p.a.; however, the effective transfer of the asset occurred in January 2018.  

 

16.1. Change in loans and financing 

Issue         Series        
Balance as at 

01/01/2017        Funding        Interest paid        
Principal 

amortization        

Interest 
expenses and 

transaction cost        
Balance as at 

12/31/2017        
 

1st Issue         Sole Series        176,368        -        (12,140)        (166,700)        2,472        -        
3rd Issue         1st series        376,595        -        (36,322)        (123,321)        31,929        248,881        
3rd Issue         2nd series        164,701        -        (11,723)        -        16,364        169,342        
4th Issue         1st series        207,727        -        (23,242)        -        22,506        206,991        
4th Issue         2nd series        295,724        -        (33,783)        -        32,715        294,656        
5th Issue         Sole Series        -        500,000        -        -        6,306        506,306        
CCB         -        181,424        -        (19,967)        (20,000)        19,155        160,612        
Finance lease         -        4,090        -        (601)        (999)        601        3,091        
Transaction cost         -        (6,227)        (1,660)        -        -        2,541        (5,346)        

 

Total          1,400,402        498,340        (137,778)        (311,020)        134,589        1,584,533        
 

Issue         Series        
Balance as at 

12/31/2017        Funding        Interest paid        
Principal 

amortization        

Interest 
expenses and 

transaction cost        
Balance as at 

06/30/2018        
 

3rd Issue         1st series        248,881        -        (8,586)        (123,321)        7,438        124,412     
3rd Issue         2nd series        169,342        -        (12,046)        -        9,093        166,389        
4th Issue         1st series        206,991        -        (7,322)        -        7,331        207,000        
4th Issue         2nd series        294,656        -        (10,640)        -        10,654        294,670        
5th Issue         Sole Series        506,306        -        (17,748)        -        17,183        505,741        
CCB         -        160,612        -        (4,718)        -        5,670        161,564        
Finance lease         -        3,091        3,981        (424)        (1,269)        424        5,803        
Transaction cost (a)         -        (5,346)        (560)        -        -        1,448        (4,458)        

 

Total          1,584,533        3,421        (61,484)        (124,590)        59,241        1,461,121        
 

(a) The transaction cost of R$(560) is due to the CCB renegotiation. 
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16.2. Fair value – Debentures 

As at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the market value, according to the unit price (PU) in the secondary market, released by the 
Brazilian Financial and Capital Market Association (ANBIMA). 

 

Debentures 06/30/2018 12/31/2017 
Issue Series Fair value Interest Fair value Interest 
3rd Issue 1st series     124,599  105.78% CDI     249,177  106.18% CDI 
3rd Issue 2nd series     175,853  IPCA + 5.35%p.a.     179,353  IPCA + 5,34%p.a. 
4th Issue 1st series     208,016  107.29% CDI     208,341  107.10% CDI  
4th Issue  2nd series    297,806  108.63% CDI    298,227  108.61% CDI 
5th Issue Sole series     503,317  109.53% CDI    506,306  - 

 

 

16.3. Covenants 

Under the debt acceleration clauses contained in the debenture indentures and in the CCB contract, the Company is required to maintain 
certain financial ratios within the limits previously set out by financial covenants. The following table shows the financial covenants with 
which the Company is required to comply. 

 
Description of covenants         Required ratio         

 

Financial ratio I - Net financial debt         Equal to or lower than twice the cash inflow         
Financial ratio II - Cash inflow         Equal to or above four times the net financial income         
Financial ratio III - Cash inflow         Equal to or above zero         

 

 
 
Net financial debt: loans and financing less cash, cash equivalents, and marketable securities, net of the technical reserves to be covered.  

  

 
Cash generation:  profit or loss before taxes on profit less depreciation and amortization. 

 

 
 

All the required financial ratios were properly complied with as at June 30, 2018 and 2017.  

 

17. Savings bonds 

The savings bonds operation is considered in the accompanying financial statements as financial instruments, according to the CPC 
38/IAS 39. The amounts that correspond to the operation are as follows: 

       Consolidated        
 

Description             Note        06/30/2018        12/31/2017        
 

Receivables             17.1      8,388        14,232        
Provisões             17.2        638,303        624,900        
    Draws          55,134        57,737        
    Redemption          574,646        558,787        
    Other          8,523        8,376        
 

 
 

17.1. Receivables by maturity 

  Consolidated        
 

Description         06/30/2018        12/31/2017        
 

Falling due           
Falling due from 01 to 30 days         5,732        6,063        
Falling due from 31 to 60 days         -      7,472        
Total         5,732        13,535        
Total falling due         5,732        13,535        
Overdue           
Overdue from 01 to 30 days         766        640        
Overdue from 31 to 60 days         1,818        57        
Overdue after 60 days         573        175        
Total         3,157        872        
Impairment         (501)        (175)        
Overdue total         2,656        697        

 

Total         8,388        14,232        
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17.2. Change in reserves 

   Consolidated        
 

 Reserve for redemption        Reserve for draws        Total        
Balance as at 01/01/2017         534,842        58,866        593,708        
Increase         671,955        89,789        761,744    
Payment         (674,157)        (87,844)        (762,001)        
Early redemption         (2,307)        -        (2,307)        
Expired/ penalties         (1,012)        (3,210)        (4,222)        
Reversion         (4,961)        (434)        (5,395)        
Inflation/interest adjustment         34,427        570        34,997        
Subtotal         558,787        57,737        616,524        
Other           8,376        
 

Balance as at 12/31/2017           624,900       
Current           624,900        

 
   Consolidated        

 

 
Reserve for 
redemption        Reserve for draws        Total        

Balance as at 12/31/2017         558,787        57,737        616,524        
Increase         338,107        28,964        367,071        
Payment         (333,025)        (27,640)        (360,665)        
Early redemption         (1,095)        -        (1,095)        
Expired/ penalties         (613)        (3,411)        (4,024)        
Reversion         (3,829)        (570)        (4,399)        
Inflation/interest adjustment         16,314        54        16,368        
Subtotal         574,646        55,134        629,780        
Other           8,523        
 

Balance as at 06/30/2018           638,303        
Current           638,303        
 

 

18. Liabilities of insurance and reinsurance 
       Consolidated        

 

Description             Note        06/30/2018        12/31/2017        
 

Insurance                
    Refund premiums          6,288        3,086        
    Insurance companies          13,181        11,436        
    Insurance brokers         18.1        98,739        101,506        
    Other operating debits          123,215        119,579        
    Third-party deposits         18.2        49,065        44,179        
Subtotal              290,488        279,786        
Reinsurance                
    Reinsurance companies         11.2        19,745        10,157        
Subtotal              19,745        10,157        

 

Total              310,233        289,943        
Current              310,233        289,943        
 

18.1. Insurance brokers 
 

  Consolidated        
 
 

Description         06/30/2018        12/31/2017        
 
 

Direct insurance and retrocession         83,357        86,169        
Direct insurance - RVNE         10,774        10,836        
Accepted coinsurance         3,590        3,784        
Other         1,018        717        
 

 

Total         98,739     101,506        
Current         98,739        101,506        
 

 
 

18.2. Third-party deposits 

Third-party deposits are amounts collected by banks and reported to SulAmérica, the policies of which are in the writing process or the 
premium installments received of which are in the adjustment or identification process. The adjustment process is applicable to bills 
received at diverging amounts or data. 
     Consolidated        
     06/30/2018        
 

Description         
Direct 

premium        Coinsurance        Saving bonds        
Private 

pension        Total        
 

1 to 30 days         12,001        -        663        8,346        21,010        
31 to 60 days         4,441        -        1,502        195        6,138        
61 to 120 days         5,051        -        330        192        5,573        
121 to 180 days         4,380        -        86        29        4,495        
181 to 365 days         5,342        1        396        693        6,432        
Over 365 days         5,082        331        -        4        5,417        
 

Total         36,297        332        2,977        9,459        49,065        
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     Consolidated        
     12/31/2017        
 

Description         
Direct 

premium        Coinsurance        Saving bonds        
Private 

pension        Total        
 

1 to 30 days         16,178        -        1,369        4,477        22,024        
31 to 60 days         3,496        -        294        73        3,863 
61 to 120 days         4,576        4        104        470        5,154        
121 to 180 days         3,637        -        43        4,503        8,183        
181 to 365 days         979        2        -        441        1,422        
Over 365 days         3,204        329        -        -        3,533        
 

Total         32,070        335        1,810        9,964        44,179        

 

19. Technical reserves for insurance 
           Consolidated        
 

Description                 Note        06/30/2018        12/31/2017        
 

Technical reserve                    
    Insurance              5,835,025        5,508,709        
        Health         19.1        2,973,973        2,684,350        
        Property and casualty         19.2        2,522,888        2,484,710        
        Life and private pension         19.3        338,164        339,649        
    Private pension             19.5        6,572,718        6,239,375        
 

Total                  12,407,743        11,748,084        
Current                  6,793,936        6,422,085        
Non-current                  5,613,807        5,325,999        

 
 

19.1. Health line 

    Consolidated        
 

 
Unearned premium 

reserve        
Reserve for claims and IBNR 

reserve        
Mathematical reserve for 

benefit granted        Total        
 

Balance as at 01/01/2017         277,745        2,013,487        46,262         
Issuance         14,837,679        -        -         
Payments/ write-off / cancellation         (963,273)        (10,858,304)        (3,487)         
Earned premium         (13,827,736)        -        -         
Reported / changes         -        11,011,194        6,805         
Monetary variation / interest         -        3,583        2,828         
Changes in IBNR         -        137,567        -         
 

Balance as at 12/31/2017         324,415        2,307,527        52,408        2,684,350        
Current            2,629,645        
Non-current            54,705        

 
    Consolidated        
 

 
Unearned premium 

reserve        
Reserve for claims and IBNR 

reserve        
Mathematical reserve for 

benefit granted        Total        
 

Balance as at 12/31/2017         324,415        2,307,527        52,408         
Issuance         8,123,070        -        -         
Payments/ write-off / cancellation         (546,636)        (6,014,302)        (1,529)         
Earned premium         (7,538,483)        -        -         
Reported / changes         -        5,935,223        362         
Monetary variation / interest         -        2,234        1,530         
Changes in IBNR         -        328,154        -         
 

Balance as at 06/30/2018         362,366        2,558,836        52,771        2,973,973        
Current            2,915,784        
Non-current            58,189        
 
 

19.2. Property and casualty line 

   Consolidated        

    
 

Unearned premium 
reserve        

Reserve for claims and 
IBNR reserve        Total        

 

Balance as at 01/01/2017         1,790,320        758,650         
Issuance         3,633,709        -         
Payments/write-off / cancellation         (326,934)        (1,975,756)         
Earned premium         (3,333,446)        -         
Reported / changes         -        1,979,044         
Monetary variation / interest         -        24,757         
Changes in IBNR         -        (65,634)         
 

Balance as at 12/31/2017         1,763,649        721,061        2,484,710        
Current           2,298,584        
Non-current           186,126        
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   Consolidated        
 

 
Unearned premium 

reserve        
Reserve for claims and 

IBNR reserve        Total   
 

Balance as at 12/31/2017         1,763,649        721,061         
Issuance         1,891,381        -         
Payments/write-off / cancellation         (150,463)        (1,160,474)         
Earned premium         (1,701,019)        -       
Reported / changes         -        1,137,143         
Monetary variation / interest         -        17,851         
Changes in IBNR         -        3,759         
 

Balance as at 06/30/2018         1,803,548        719,340        2,522,888  
Current           2,325,950        
Non-current           196,938        

 
19.3. Life (other than private pension line (a)) 

 

    Consolidated        
 

 
Unearned premium 

reserve        
Reserve for claims and IBNR 

reserve        

Mathematical reserve 
for benefits to be 

granted        Total        
 

Balance as at 01/01/2017         30,389        231,467        10,411         
Issuance         519,425        -        -         
Reported, net of payments and cancellations         (89,704)   28,103        67         
Earned premium         (435,161)        -        -         
Monetary variation / interest         -        14,501        -         
Changes in IBNR         -        (31,082)        -         
Subtotal         24,949        242,989        10,478        278,416        
Other (b)     61,233        
 

Balance as at 12/31/2017            339,649        
Current            178,758        
Non-current            160,891        
 

 
 

    Consolidated        
 

 
Unearned premium 

reserve        
Reserve for claims and IBNR 

reserve        

Mathematical reserve 
for benefits to be 

granted        Total        
 

Balance as at 12/31/2017         24,949        242,989        10,478         
Issuance         259,189      -        -         
Reported, net of payments and cancellations         (22,430)        4,719        (167)         
Earned premium         (241,117)        -        -         
Monetary variation / interest         -        7,108        -       
Changes in IBNR         -        (3,527)        -         
Subtotal         20,591        251,289        10,311        282,191        
Other (b)            55,973        
 

Balance as at 06/30/2018            338,164        
Current            181,789        
Non-current            156,375        
 

(a) See Note 19.5. 
(b) According to the procedure adopted and informed in Note 3.11 as at December 31, 2017. 
 
 

 

19.4. Claims disputed in court 

As at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Outstanding Claims Reserve comprises claims that are being disputed in court, 
principally related to denial of coverage for non-fulfillment of contract conditions, related mainly to the auto and life lines. The position 
shown below does not include the IBNR Reserve for Lawsuits, which is recorded in a separate IBNR line item. 

 

      Consolidated        

   Health          Health        

   06/30/2018          12/31/2017        
 

Description         Quantity        Open balance        Accrued amount        Quantity        Open balance        Accrued amount        
 

Up to 2 years         4,685        10,873        12,024        4,153        9,296        10,149        
2 to 5 years         1,093        11,895        12,992        950        11,011        11,939        
5 to 10 years         328        7,582        8,189        317        8,150        8,750        
Over 10 years         54        3,379        3,753        57        4,457        4,910        
 

Total Health         6,160        33,729        36,958        5,477        32,914        35,748        
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Property and 
casualty          

Property and 
casualty        

   06/30/2018          12/31/2017        
Description         Quantity        Open balance      Accrued amount        Quantity        Open balance        Accrued amount        
 

Up to 2 years         3,268        122,385        56,203        3,151        109,653        47,834        
2 to 5 years         1,635        139,120        69,080        1,598        131,042        64,090        
5 to 10 years         844        113,776        62,692        791        96,678        51,591        
Over 10 years         377        91,626        60,411        370        78,477        54,490        
 

Total Property and casualty         6,124        466,907        248,386        5,910        415,850        218,005        
 

 

 
 
 
  

Life and private 
pension          

Life and private 
pension        

   06/30/2018          12/31/2017        
 
 

Description         Quantity        Open balance        Accrued amount        Quantity        Open balance        Accrued amount        
 

Up to 2 years         1,129        76,984        23,851        1,106        72,549        23,344        
2 to 5 years         1,013        113,436        41,308        1,028        112,570        39,542        
5 to 10 years         409        63,860        29,155        406        62,336        28,755        
Over 10 years         186        56,181        30,446        175        51,645        28,588        
 

Total Life and private pension         2,737        310,461        124,760        2,715        299,100        120,229        
Total         15,021        811,097   410,104        14,102        747,864        373,982        
 

 
 

As at June 30, 2018, the amount being disputed in civil lawsuits, for which there is no provision and the likelihood of loss is considered 
“possible”, is R$118,367 (R$113,276 as at December 31, 2017), gross of reinsurance. The reinsurance amount of these claims is 
R$39,444 (R$40,247 as at December 31, 2017). Therefore, the residual amount in dispute is R$78,923 (R$73,029 as at December 31, 
2017). 

 

19.5. Private pension 
 

    Consolidated        
 

 

Mathematical reserve 
for benefits to be 

granted        
Mathematical reserve for 

benefit granted        
Contribution deficiency 

reserve        Total        
 

Balance as at 01/01/2017         5,472,898        439,964        174,330     
Constitution / (reversal)         521,823        11,470        (11,710)         
Incoming portability         243,729        -        -         
Outgoing portability         (453,569)        -        -         
Redemptions         (592,572)        -        -         
Benefits         -        (98,633)        -         
Transfers         (81,685)        81,685        -         
Monetary variation / interest         488,135        21,650        8,316         
Subtotal         5,598,759        456,136        170,936        6,225,831        
Other            13,544        
 

Balance as at 12/31/2017            6,239,375        
Current            1,315,097        
Non-current            4,924,278        

 
 

 Consolidated   
 

 Mathematical reserve for 
benefits to be granted        

Mathematical reserve for 
benefit granted        

Contribution deficiency 
reserve        Total        

 

Balance as at 12/31/2017         5,598,759        456,136        170,936        
Constitution / (reversal)         282,347        12,854        (1,747)        
Incoming portability         241,535        - -
Outgoing portability         (207,384)        - -
Redemptions         (197,969)        - -
Benefits         - (44,673)        -
Transfers         (32,877)        32,877        -
Monetary variation / interest         200,009        34,342        13,588        
Subtotal         5,884,420    491,536        182,777        6,558,733        
Other         13,985        

 

Balance as at 06/30/2018         6,572,718        
Current         1,370,413        
Non-current         5,202,305        

 
 

19.6. Guarantee of technical reserves 

This note shows the balances of technical reserves recognized in the subsidiaries regulated by SUSEP and the ANS, without the 
adjustments of the accounting practices adopted in the accompanying financial statements. The objective of this note is only to show the 
regulatory obligation of such companies, from a consolidated perspective. 
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The assets offered as guarantee of such technical reserves are recorded in clearinghouses in the technical reserve account. In the case of 
companies regulated by SUSEP, the inspection body authorizes the insurance company to hold them without restriction every year. The 
companies regulated by ANS, except SULAMED, still do not have authorization for trading freely, accordingly, these assets may only be 
traded with the ANS’ prior authorization. 

  Consolidated        
 

Description         06/30/2018        12/31/2017        
 

Technical reserves to be covered,  net of reducing assets         11,690,333        11,142,118        
Fixed income securities - government         9,024,544        9,073,259        
Fixed income securities - private         1,886,641        2,223,197        
Equity securities         204,635        180,613        
Other         1,402,916        672,752        
Assets pledged as collateral         12,518,736        12,149,821        
Assets pledged in excess         828,403        1,007,703        
 

 

20. Provisions and escrow deposits 

20.1. Escrow deposits 

  Company        
 

Description         06/30/2018        12/31/2017        
 

Tax:               
    Income tax         1,659        1,633        
Subtotal             1,659        1,633        
 

Total         1,659        1,633        
Non-current         1,659        1,633        
 
 
  Consolidated        
 

Description         06/30/2018        12/31/2017        
 

Tax:               
    COFINS         561,486        552,810        
    PIS         426,704        419,630        
    Social contribuition         679,842        665,838        
    Income tax         211,711        208,433        
    INSS (a)         422,268        444,859        
    Other         38,373        37,291        
Subtotal             2,340,384        2,328,861        
Labor             126,021        118,917        
Civil lawsuits             421,195        408,584        
 

Total         2,887,600        2,856,362        
Non-current         2,887,600        2,856,362        
 

(a) In March 2018, the escrow deposit in the approximate amount of R$28,627 was withdrawn, because of a favorable decision in proceeding 9600083380, which purpose was the INSS 
on medical services.  

 

20.2. Provisions for lawsuits 

As at June 30, 2018, the Company is party to lawsuits and has tax obligations amounting to R$3,292 (R$2,284 as at 12/31/2017). In the 
consolidated balance, the position is as follows: 

     Consolidated        
 

Description         
Balance as at 

01/01/2017        Additions        
Monetary variation 

and interest        
Payments / 

write-offs        
Balance as at 

12/31/2017        
 

Labor             67,576        18,221        7,980        (7,381)        86,396        
    Current             4,811        
    Non-current             81,585        
Civil lawsuits and others:                  
    Civil lawsuits         253,199        146,062        31,767        (100,507)        330,521        
    Others         32,353        54,930        6,718        (58,674)        35,327        
    Lawyer's fees         26,391        18,635        -        (10,393)        34,633        
Subtotal             311,943        219,627        38,485        (169,574)        400,481        
    Current             73,441        
    Non-current             327,040        
Tax:                  
    PIS         282,078        174        14,707        (950)        296,009        
    COFINS         456,328        -        23,176        (9,330)        470,174        
    Income tax         163,204        2,782        9,818        (2,309)        173,495        
    Social contribuition         538,877        30,420        43,359        (8)        612,648        
    INSS         335,248        -        16,941        (13,009)        339,180        
    Others tax claims         20,713        -        738        (20,372)        1,079        
    Lawyer's fees         36,900        3,464        3,305        (3,584)        40,085        
Subtotal             1,833,348        36,840        112,044        (49,562)        1,932,670        
    Non-current             1,932,670        
 

Total         2,212,867        274,688        158,509        (226,517)        2,419,547        
Current             78,252        
Non-current             2,341,295        
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     Consolidated        
 

Description         
Balance as at 

12/31/2017        Additions        
Monetary variation 

and interest        
Payments / 

write-offs        
Balance as at 

06/30/2018        
 

Labor             86,396        8,886        2,807        (8,090)        89,999        
    Current             4,038        
    Non-current             85,961        
Civil lawsuits and others:                  
    Civil lawsuits         330,521        83,972        17,889        (96,401)        335,981        
    Others         35,327        31,791        2,662        (34,976)        34,804        
    Lawyer's fees         34,633        10,478        -        (10,011)        35,100        
Subtotal             400,481        126,241        20,551        (141,388)        405,885        
    Current             58,681        
    Non-current             347,204        
Tax:                  
    PIS         296,009        106        6,538        -        302,653        
    COFINS         470,174        -        7,150        -        477,324        
    Income tax         173,495        -        3,061        -        176,556        
    Social contribuition         612,648        35        13,615        (1,394)        624,904        
    INSS         339,180        -        5,272        -        344,452        
    Others tax claims         1,079        -        340        (578)        841        
    Lawyer's fees         40,085        4,567        2,761        (4,968)        42,445        
Subtotal             1,932,670        4,708        38,737        (6,940)        1,969,175        
    Non-current             1,969,175        
 

Total         2,419,547        139,835        62,095        (156,418)        2,465,059        
Current             62,719        
Non-current             2,402,340        

 
 
 
20.2.1. Tax obligations 

There was no change in the progress of the main tax proceedings arising from tax obligations presented in the individual and consolidated 
financial statements from December 31, 2017 to June 30, 2018. 

 
20.2.2. Provision for lawsuits 

There was no change in the history of main tax proceedings arising from provisions for lawsuits presented in the individual and 
consolidated financial statements from December 31, 2016 to June 30, 2018. Except for what is reported in the Note of contingencies 
(20.2.3 - (a)).  

 

20.2.3. Contingent liabilities 

As at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the total amount being disputed in relevant tax proceedings whose likelihood of loss is 
classified as “possible” by the attorneys handling these lawsuits is as follows: 

 

Description         06/30/2018        12/31/2017        
 

Tax (a) 1,556,190        2,051,559        
Civil lawsuits (b)  297,150        263,657        
Labor         76,091        73,352        
 

Total         1,929,431        2,388,568        
 

(a) The reduction of R$ 597,753 was caused by the change in the likelihood of unfavorable decision in claims challenging the CSLL rate increase from 9% to 15% from possible to 
probable, in view of former unfavorable court decisions. As it refers to a legal obligation for which the amount has been fully provisioned, the change did not impact the line item 
“Lawsuits”. 
   
In addition, of the total amount of R$ 1,556,190 (R$ 2,051,559 as at December 31, 2017), the amount of R$224,757 (R$805,943 as at December 31, 2017) is accrued because it 
basically refers to legal obligations. The portion not accrued, amounting to R$1,331,433 (R$1,245,616 as at December 31, 2017) consists mainly of the following: (i) tax assessment 
notices issued against the subsidiaries CIA. SAÚDE and SALIC, in which the deductibility for goodwill amortization arising from the acquisition of the parent companies SLT 
Participações S.A. and STA Participações S.A., respectively, in the calendar years 2005, 2006 and 2007 is being challenged; (ii) the non-approval of the offset of taxes at the 
administrative level; (iii) the disallowance of tax losses and income tax loss and social contribution loss carryforwards; (iv) imposition of COFINS on investment income linked to assets 
guaranteeing technical reserves; and (v) claim aimed at charging ISS debits arising from the supposed lack of collection of tax on the services provided in the municipality of São Paulo. 
 
(b) In June 2018, in view of a favorable decision awarded to SulAmérica, the amount of R$ 34,236 was reversed from the line item “Lawsuits”. As a consequence, the likelihood of loss 
was changed from probable to possible. 

 

21. Related parties 

The main asset and liability balances related to related party transactions, as well as the transactions that influenced the profit or loss for 
the period, are related to transactions of the Company with its direct and indirect companies, related companies and key management 
personnel. In the consolidated balance, refers to operations with direct and indirect parent, employees and key management personnel. 
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21.1. Transactions 
 

The main transactions are as follows: 

      Company     
    Assets         Liabilities        
 

Description         Type         Shareholder         06/30/2018        12/31/2017        06/30/2018        12/31/2017        
 

Sulasapar Participações S.A. (a) (b)         Shareholder        Sulasa Participações S.A.         -        -        -        46,827        

Sul América Capitalização S.A. - SULACAP (d)         
Indirect 
subsidiary         

Sul América Santa Cruz Participações 
S.A.         250        582        -        -        

Saepar Serviços e Participações S.A. (b) (f)    
Direct 
subsidiary         Sul América S.A.         12,750        38,250        83        -        

Sul América Companhia de Seguro Saúde (c) (d)        
Indirect 
subsidiary         

Sul América Companhia Nacional de 
Seguros         28,037        27,190        -        -        

Sul América Investimentos Distribuidora de Títulos e 
Valores Mobiliários S.A. (d)         

Indirect 
subsdiary         

Sul América Companhia de Seguro 
Saúde         238        334        -  -        

Sul America Investimentos Gestora De Recursos 
S.A. (d)         

Indirect 
subsidiary         

Sul América Investimentos 
Distribuidora de Títulos e Valores 
Mobiliários S.A.         742        1,008        -        -        

Sul América Seguros de Pessoas e Previdência S.A. 
(d)         

Indirect 
subsidiary         

Sul América Companhia de Seguro 
Saúde         2,822        2,677        -        -        

Sul América Companhia Nacional de Seguros (b) (c) 
(d) (e)         

Indirect 
subsidiary         Saepar Serviços e Participações S.A        54,603        143,122        37        86        

Sul América Odontológico S.A. (c)         
Indirect 
subsidiary         

Sul América Companhia de Seguro 
Saúde         -        1        -        -  

International Finance Corporation  (a) (b)         
Affiliated 
company         Other         -        -        -        10,369        

Swiss Re Direct Investments Company Ltd. (a) (b)        
Affiliated 
company         Other         -        - -        27,714        

Other shareholders (a) (b)         Other         Other         -        -        1,785        100,031        
 

Total           99,442        213,164        1,905        185,027        
 

(a) Amount related to the dividends distributable to or receivable among shareholders, holders of interests or partners; 
(b) Amount related to interest on capital distributable to or receivable among shareholders, holders of interests or partners; 
(c) Amount related to intercompany transactions in current accounts basically of refund of administrative expenses, which are settled in the month subsequent to that of the 

transaction; 
(d) Amount related to the refund of the subsidiaries with stock option plans of the Company offered to the management members of the group companies; and 
(e) Amount related to the apportionment of the rent of the Headquarters’ building among SulAmérica’s companies. 
(f) Refers to intercompany security commitments. 
 
      Consolidated        
    Assets         Liabilities        
 

Description         Type         Shareholder         06/30/2018        12/31/2017        06/30/2018        12/31/2017        
 

Sulasapar Participações S.A. (a) (b)         Shareholder        Sulasa Participações S.A.         - -        -        46,827        
J.H. Gouvea Vieira Escritório de Advocacia (c)         Other         Other         -        -        -        -        
Gouvea Vieira Advocacia (c)         Other         Other         -        -        -   -        
Gouvea Vieira Sociedade de Advogados (c)         Other         Other         -        -        -        -        
Gouvea Vieira Advogados Associados (c)         Other         Other         -        -        -        -        
Escritório de Advocacia Gouvea Vieira (c)         Other         Other         -        -        606        -        

Caixa Capitalização S.A. (a)         
Associated 
company         

Caixa Seguros Participações 
Securitárias Ltda.         -        7,899      -        -        

International Finance Corporation  (a) (b)         
Affiliated 
company         Other         -        -        -        10,369        

Swiss Re Direct Investments Company Ltd.  (a) (b)        
Affiliated 
company         Other         -        -        -        27,714        

Swiss Reinsurance America Corporation (e)         
Affiliated 
company         Other         20        50        -        -        

Swiss Re Brasil Resseguros S.A. (e)         
Affiliated 
company         Other         3,335        4,886        1,495        2,074        

Sharecare Brasil Serv. De Consultoria Ltda (a) (d)        
Associated 
company         

Sharecare Digital Health 
International Limited         -        1,094        6,573        6,736 

Nova Ação Participações S.A. (f)         
Affiliated 
company         Sulasapar Participações S.A.        21        5        -        -        

Other shareholders (a) (b)         Other         Other         -        -        1,785        100,842        
 

Total           3,376        13,934        10,459        194,562        

 
      Consolidated        
      Income        
 

Description         Type         Shareholder         

First half 
ended 

06/30/2018        

Quarter 
ended 

06/30/2018        

First half 
ended 

06/30/2017        

Quarter 
ended 

06/30/2017        
 

Sulasapar Participações S.A. (a) (b)         Shareholder        Sulasa Participações S.A.         -        -        -        -        
J.H. Gouvea Vieira Escritório de Advocacia (c)         Other         Other         -        -        -        -        
Gouvea Vieira Advocacia (c)         Other         Other         -        -        -        -        
Gouvea Vieira Sociedade de Advogados (c)         Other         Other         -        -        -        -        
Gouvea Vieira Advogados Associados (c)         Other         Other         -        -        -        -        
Escritório de Advocacia Gouvea Vieira (c)         Other         Other         -     -        -        -        

Caixa Capitalização S.A. (a)         
Associated 
company         Caixa Seguros Participações Securitárias Ltda.        -        -        -        -        

International Finance Corporation  (a) (b)         
Affiliated 
company         Other         -        -        -        -        

Swiss Re Direct Investments Company Ltd.  (a) (b)        
Affiliated 
company         Other         -        -        -        -        

Swiss Reinsurance America Corporation (e)         
Affiliated 
company         Other         6        6        -        -        

Swiss Re Brasil Resseguros S.A. (e)         
Affiliated 
company         Other         3,366        (494)        4,399        1,327        

Healthways Brasil Serv. De Consultoria Ltda (a) (d)        
Associated 
company         Healthways International, S.À.R.L         -        -        -        -        

Nova Ação Participações S.A. (f)         
Affiliated 
company               Sulasapar Participações S.A.         -        -        -        -        

Other shareholders (a) (b)         Other         Other         -        -        -        -        
 

Total           3,372        (488)        4,399        1,327        
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      Consolidated        
      Expenses        

 

Description         Type         Shareholder         

First half 
ended 

06/30/2018        

Quarter 
ended 

06/30/2018        

First half 
ended 

06/30/2017        

Quarter 
ended 

06/30/2017        
 

Sulasapar Participações S.A. (a) (b)         Shareholder        Sulasa Participações S.A.         -        -        -        -        
J.H. Gouvea Vieira Escritório de Advocacia (c)         Other         Other         (1,415)        (922)        (1,317)        (635)        
Gouvea Vieira Advocacia (c)         Other         Other         (166)        (83)        (130)        (60)        
Gouvea Vieira Sociedade de Advogados (c)         Other         Other         -        -        (30)        -        
Gouvea Vieira Advogados Associados (c)         Other         Other         (77)        (50)        -        -        
Escritório de Advocacia Gouvea Vieira (c)         Other         Other         (39)        (39)        (2,011)        (1,808)        

Caixa Capitalização S.A. (a)         
Associated 
company         Caixa Seguros Participações Securitárias Ltda.        -        -        -        -        

International Finance Corporation  (a) (b)         
Affiliated 
company         Other         -        -        -        -   

Swiss Re Direct Investments Company Ltd. (a) (b)        
Affiliated 
company         Other         -        -        -        -        

Swiss Reinsurance America Corporation (e)         
Affiliated 
company         Other         -        -        (402)        (112)        

Swiss Re Brasil Resseguros S.A. (e)         
Affiliated 
company         Other         -        -        (3,036)        (891)        

Healthways Brasil Serv. De Consultoria Ltda (a) (d)        
Associated 
company         Healthways International, S.À.R.L         (44,762)        (22,138)        (35,080)        (18,075)        

Nova Ação Participações S.A. (f) 
Affiliated 
company         Sulasapar Participações S.A. -        -        -        -        

Other shareholders (a) (b)         Other         Other         -        -        -        -        
 

Total           (46,459)        (23,232)        (42,006)        (21,581)        
 

(a) Amount related to dividends distributable to or receivable among shareholders, holders of interests or partners; 
(b) Amount related to interest on capital distributable to or receivable among shareholders, holders of interests or partners; 
(c) Amount related to advisory services provided and follow-up of lawsuits of civil, labor and tax nature. These contracts are renewed annually and terminated monthly; 
(d) Amount related to service provision and health solutions; 
(e) Amount related to reinsurance operations; and 
(f) Amount related to the apportionment of the rent of the Headquarters’ and Pinheiros head office’s buildings among SulAmérica’s companies. 

 
The amounts of dividends and interest on capital received and paid by the Company, up to June 30, 2018, are as follows: 
 
 
    Company        

  
Dividends and interest 

equity received         
Dividends and interest 

equity paid        
 

 06/30/2018        12/31/2017        06/30/2018        12/31/2017        
 

Saepar         -        31,858        -        - 
Cia. Saúde         -        66,968        -        -        
Salic         90,847        22,230        -        -        
Sulasapar         -        -        46,530        42,088        
Non-controlling shareholders         -        -        136,625        122,450        
 

Total         90,847        121,056        183,155        164,538        

 
 
As at June 30, 2018, in the consolidated balance dividends were received through its subsidiaries, in the amount of R$62,002 (R$34,897 
as at December 31, 2017). Additionally, the amount of R$579 (R$955 as at December 31, 2017) related to interest on capital was paid 
through its subsidiary Sulacap to other shareholders.  

 

 

21.2. Compensation of management members 

SulAmérica’s Management is composed of members of the Boards of Directors and Executive Officers of the Company and its 
subsidiaries, including members of the advisory committees of the Board of Directors. Management compensation expenses, paid or 
payable, are shown below. The charts also include expenses related to the costing of the stock option plan of the Company. 

 

   Company        
 

 
Short-term benefits for 

management        
Stock option 

plan        Total        
 

Accounts payable            
06/30/2018         68       -        68        
12/31/2017         70        -        70        
Expenses            
First half ended 06/30/2018         (2,616)        (10)        (2,626)        
Quarter ended 06/30/2018         (1,183)        (4)        (1,187)        
First half ended 06/30/2017         (2,584)        (9)        (2,593)        
Quarter ended 06/30/2017         (1,294)        (5)        (1,299)        
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    Consolidated        

 

 
Short-term benefits for 

management        
Post-employment 

benefits        
Stock option 

plan        Total        
 

Accounts payable             
06/30/2018         30,307        11,190        -        41,497        
12/31/2017         50,159        11,574        -        61,733        
Expenses             
First half ended 06/30/2018         (48,893)        (1,031)        (6,844)        (56,768)        
Quarter ended 06/30/2018         (25,071)        (322)        (3,242)        (28,635)        
First half ended 06/30/2017         (39,442)        (1,859)        (7,118)        (48,419)        
Quarter ended 06/30/2017         (17,288)        (911)        (3,674)        (21,873)        
 

 
Stock option plan of the Company 

The characteristics of the stock option plan of simple and bonus shares are as follows: 

 
Simple option plan 

The simple stock option plan of the Company was introduced in 2008 and discontinued in 2012, not giving rise to further grants. In April 
2017, its options were fully cancelled, as shown in the table below.  

  Company     
 

Unit options (quantity)        
Weighted average 

period price        
 

Simple options         Units        Common        Preferred        (in reais)        
 

Balance of options outstanding on 01/01/2017         11,029        11,029        22,058        13,87        
Balance of simple options exercisable as at 01/01/2017         11,029        11,029        22,058        13,87        
Simple options forfeited over the period         (11,029)        (11,029)        (22,058)        13,87        
Balance of options outstanding as at 12/31/2017         -        -        -        -        
Balance of simple options exercisable as at 12/31/2017         -        -        -         
Balance of simple options outstanding on 06/30/2018         -        -        -        -        
Balance of simple options exercisable as at 06/30/2018         -        -        -        -        
 

 
 
Bonus option plan 

The Bonus Option Plan was introduced in 2011, and in this plan the executive opts for joining the Plan using a portion of her/his short-term 
variable compensation for purchasing the Company’s units (“restricted units”). For each acquired unit, the executive shall receive an 
amount of bonus options in exchange. 

Executives are entitled to exercise bonus stock options (vesting date) from the third year, in the proportion of 33%, 33% and 34% each 
year, and extension of the period for one additional year, totaling six years, when the incentives in shares which are not exercised expire. 

On April 3, 2017, the Board of Directors approved the 2017 Plan, according to which 827,330 bonus options were granted, in exchange for 
the acquisition of 320,500 restricted units. 

On April 2, 2018, the Board of Directors approved the 2018 Plan, according to which 849,587 bonus options were granted, in exchange for 
the acquisition of 326,800 restricted units.  

The changes in the balance of bonus options already granted are summarized below: 

  Company        

 Unit options (quantity)        
Weighted average period 

price (b)        
 

 Units        Common        Preferred        (in reais)        
 

Balance of bonus options outstanding in 01/01/2017         3,638,940        3,638,940        7,277,880        N/A        
Balance of bonus options exercisable as at 01/01/2017         124,866        124,866        249,732        N/A        
Bonus options granted over the period         827,330        827,330        1,654,660        N/A        
Bonus options exercised over the period         (828,266)      (828,266)        (1,656,532)        14.29        
Bonus options forfeited over the period         (111,018)        (111,018)        (222,036)        N/A        
Bonus and other shareholding changes (a) 606,632        606,632        1,213,264        N/A        
Balance of bonus options outstanding in 12/31/2017         4,133,618        4,133,618        8,267,236        N/A        
Balance of bonus options exercisable in 12/31/2017         63,878        63,878        127,756        N/A        
Bonus options granted over the period 849,587        849,587        1,699,174        N/A        
Bonus options exercised over the period         (783,644)        (783,644)        (1,567,288)        14.47        
Bonus options forfeited over the period         (163,534)        (163,534)        (327,068)        N/A        
Balance of bonus options outstanding in 06/30/2018         4,036,027        4,036,027        8,072,054        N/A        
Balance of bonus options exercisable in 06/30/2018         279,527        279,527        559,054        N/A        
 

(a) All options, bonus ones, outstanding (exercisable contracts or in grace period) from March 29, 2017 were adjusted at 15.6775141%, which amount was added to the number of 
existing plan options; and 

(b) The weighted average exercise price of bonus options is restricted by the holding of acquired Restricted Units, the grace period of which is fixed. 

 
The expense, based on the fair value of the option on the respective dates of the grant contracts, corresponding to the Stock Option Plan 
of the Company as at June 30, 2018 was R$6,844 (R$7,118 as at June 30, 2017), of which R$10 (R$9 as at June 30, 2017) related to the 
executives of the Company, and R$6,834 (R$7,109  as at June 30, 2017) of its subsidiaries, which indemnify SulAmérica for the 
participation of their executives in the stock option plan, and are recorded in the line item “Administrative Expenses”, as contra-entry to 
“Capital Reserves”. 
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The minimum and maximum exercise prices of exercised bonus options as at June 30, 2018, are R$18.00 and R$21.85, respectively 
(R$16.93 and R$21.00 as at December 31, 2017). The contractual period of bonus options is 4.11 years (3.62 years as at December 31, 
2017). 

 

22. Equity 

22.1. Capital  

As at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, as approved by the Annual and Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting held on March 29, 
2017, the Company’s capital amounts to R$3,319,882, represented by 1,182,461,903 shares, of which 592,688,393 are common and 
589,773,510 are preferred shares, all registered with no par value, and fully paid-up. 

The change in shares outstanding is as follows: 

    Company        
 

Date         Description         Common        Preferred        Total        
 

 Shares         512,362,664        509,842,829        1,022,205,493        
 Treasury shares (see note 22.4)         (5,978,121)        (11,956,243)        (17,934,364)        

01/01/2017         Total         506,384,543        497,886,586        1,004,271,129        
 Capital increase - issuance of new shares         80,325,729        79,930,681        160,256,410        
 Repurchase (sale) of treasury shares and other changes         (1,200,231)        (2,400,466)        (3,600,697)        

12/31/2017         Total         585,510,041        575,416,801        1,160,926,842    
 Repurchase (sale) of treasury shares and other changes         669,999        1,339,998        2,009,997        

 

06/30/2018         Total         586,180,040        576,756,799        1,162,936,839        
 

 

22.1.1. Authorized capital 

There was no change in the policy on authorized capital composition presented in the individual and consolidated financial statements 
from December 31, 2017 to June 30, 2018. 

 
22.2. Reserves 

There was no change in the policy on reserve composition presented in the individual and consolidated financial statements from 
December 31, 2017 to June 30, 2018. 

 
22.3. Equity adjustment 

There was no change in the accounting practices adopted for equity adjustment presented in the individual and consolidated financial 
statements from December 31, 2017 to June 30, 2018. 

 
22.4. Treasury shares 

There was no change to the content in the notes as at the reporting date December 31, 2017 in relation to treasury shares. 

 

The change in treasury shares is as follows: 

    Company 
 

Roll forward of treasury stocks         

Number of 
shares (in 

units)        ON        PN        
Weighted average price 

(in reais)        
 

Treasury stocks in 01/01/2017         5,978,121        5,978,121        11,956,243        16.42      
Shares related to options exercised in the year - share bonus         (828,266)        (828,266)        (1,656,532)        14.65        
Disposal of shares in the year - share bonus         (320,500)        (320,500)        (641,000)        14.26        
Acquired of shares in the year - share bonus         1,401,442        1,401,442        2,802,884        18.27        
Bonus and other share changes         947,555        947,555        1,895,114        -        
Treasury stocks in 12/31/2017 (a)         7,178,352        7,178,352        14,356,709        14.92        
Shares related to options exercised in the period - share bonus         (783,644)        (783,644)        (1,567,288)        15.21        
Disposal of shares in the period - share bonus         (326,800)        (326,800)        (653,600)        14.95        
Acquired of shares in the period - share bonus         440,445        440,445        880,890        21.23        
Treasury stocks in 06/30/2018 (a)         6,508,353        6,508,353        13,016,711        15.31        
   

 

(a)   The Units, repurchased for holding them in treasury, are each broken down in one common share and two preferred shares, representing as at June 30, 2018, 6,508,353 (7,178,352 
as at December 31, 2017) common shares and 13,016,711 (14,356,709 as at December 31, 2017) preferred shares. 
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The repurchases and sales of treasury shares, occurred in period as at June 30, 2018, was R$9,350 and R$7,173 (R$24,918 of 
repurchase and R$5,349 of sales as at December 31, 2017). These repurchases and sales were recorded in line items “Treasury shares” 
and “Capital reserves”, and the minimum cost to repurchase units is R$18.00 (R$16.93 as at December 31, 2017) and the maximum cost 
is R$21.85 (R$21.00 as at December 31, 2017) as at June 30, 2018. The market value of units, calculated based on the last price as at 
June 30, 2018, is R$18,28 (R$18.66 as at December 31, 2017).  

 

22.5. Dividend distribution policy 

There was no change in the dividend distribution policy as presented in the individual and consolidated financial statements from 
December 31, 2017 to June 30, 2018. 

 

22.6. Earnings per share 

Earnings per common and preferred share take into consideration not only common and preferred shares in free float, but also the 
potential issues and cancellations (diluting and anti-diluting), arising from the Stock Option Plan of the Company. 

As the earnings per share attributable to controlling shareholders of the Company is equal to that of SulAmérica, only one set of 
information is presented as follows. 
 

 Company        

 
First half ended 

06/30/2018        
 
 

Description         Common        Preferred        Total        
 

Net income for the period attributed to shares         139,527        137,285        276,812        
Weighted average number of shares         592,688,393        589,773,510        1,182,461,903        
Weighted average number of treasury shares         (6,994,342)        (13,988,684)        (20,983,026)        
Weighted average number of shares outstanding - basic         585,694,051        575,784,826        1,161,478,877        
Earnings per share - basic (a) (in R$)         0.2382        0.2384        0.2383        
Adjustment:          
Weighted average number of shares granted and cancelled in connection with the Stock Option Plan of the company        4,252,010        8,504,020        12,756,030        
Weighted average number of shares outstanding - diluted         589,946,061        584,288,846    1,174,234,907        
Earnings per share - diluted (b) (in R$)         0.2365        0.2350        0.2357        
 

 
 

  Company        

  
First half ended 

06/30/2017        
 

Description         Common        Preferred        Total        
 
 

Net income for the period attributed to shares         105,501        103,692        209,193        
Weighted average number of shares         554,078,788        551,353,790        1,105,432,578        
Weighted average number of treasury shares         (6,461,747)        (12,923,494)        (19,385,241)        
Weighted average number of shares outstanding - basic         547,617,041        538,430,296        1,086,047,337        
Earnings per share - basic (a) (in R$)         0.1927    0.1926        0.1926        
Adjustment:          
Weighted average number of shares granted and cancelled in connection with the Stock Option Plan of the company        4,146,289        8,292,578        12,438,867        
Weighted average number of shares outstanding - diluted         551,763,330        546,722,874        1,098,486,204        
Earnings per share - diluted (b) (in R$)         0.1912        0.1897        0.1904        
 

 
 Company        

 
Quarter ended 

06/30/2018   
 

Description         Common        Preferred        Total        
 

Net income for the period attributed to shares         68,245        67,147        135,392        
Weighted average number of shares         592,688,393        589,773,510    1,182,461,903        
Weighted average number of treasury shares         (6,811,795)        (13,623,590)        (20,435,385)        
Weighted average number of shares outstanding - basic         585,876,598        576,149,920        1,162,026,518        
Earnings per share - basic (a) (in R$)         0.1165        0.1165        0.1165        
Adjustment:         
Weighted average number of shares granted and cancelled in connection with the Stock Option Plan of the 
company         4,378,476        8,756,952        13,135,428        
Weighted average number of shares outstanding - diluted         590,255,074        584,906,872        1,175,161,946        
Earnings per share - diluted (b) (in R$)         0.1156        0.1148        0.1152        

 
 Company        

 
Quarter ended 

06/30/2017        
 

Description         Common        Preferred        Total        
 

Net income for the period attributed to shares         40,643        39,946        80,589        
Weighted average number of shares         592,688,393        589,773,510        1,182,461,903        
Weighted average number of treasury shares         (6,899,637)        (13,799,275)        (20,698,912)        
Weighted average number of shares outstanding - basic         585,788,756        575,974,235        1,161,762,991        
Earnings per share - basic (a) (in R$)         0.0694        0.0694        0.0694        
Adjustment:         
Weighted average number of shares granted and cancelled in connection with the Stock Option Plan of the 
company         4,657,814        9,315,627        13,973,441        
Weighted average number of shares outstanding - diluted         590,446,570        585,289,862        1,175,736,432        
Earnings per share - diluted (b) (in R$)         0.0688        0.0683        0.0685        
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(a)    Basic 

Basic earnings per share is calculated based on the division of the net income attributable to shareholders by the weighted average 
number of common and preferred shares in free float for the year, less the weighted average treasury stock. 

(b)    Diluted 

Diluted earnings per share is calculated based on the division of the profit attributable to shareholders by the adjusted weighted average 
number of common and preferred shares in free float for the year, less the weighted average treasury stock. 

The adjustment to the weighted average takes into consideration the number of vesting and forfeitures according to the Stock Option Plan 
of the Company during the year. 

 

23. Operating segments 

23.1. Statement of profit or loss by segment 
 

There was no change in SulAmérica’s business structure from December 31, 2017 to June 30, 2018. 

As at June 30, 2018 and 2017, SulAmérica has the following profit or loss by business unit, as shown below: 
 
 
 

 
 

               Consolidated        

               

First half 
ended 

06/30/2018        

Description                 Health        
Property and 

casualty        

Life and 
private 

pension        
Savings 

bonds        
Asset 

management        Other        Total        
 

Operating revenue                 7,541,112        1,728,711        536,760        27,706        35,771        (13,070)        9,856,990        
    Insurance             7,511,363        1,710,946        228,879        -        -        (910)        9,450,278        
        Net premiums         7,511,351        1,710,646        228,322        -        -        (2,600)        9,447,719        
        Other         12        300        557        -        -        1,690        2,559        
    Private pension             -        -        307,881        -        -        -        307,881        
        Premiums, retained contributions and net asset management 
fee         -        -        307,378        -        -        -        307,378        
        Other         -        -        503        -        -        -        503        
    Saving bonds, ASO, asset managment             29,749        -        -        27,706        35,771        (12,160)        81,066        
    Other             -        17,765        -        -        -        -        17,765        
Change in premium technical reserves                 (38,313)        (36,249)        (236,264)        -        -        -        (310,826)        
        Insurance         (38,313)        (36,249)        12,803        -        -        -        (61,759)        
        Private pension         -        -        (249,067)        -        -        -        (249,067)        
Operating expenses                 (6,881,130)        (1,410,580)        (243,606)        (27,800)        (1,811)        3,215        (8,561,712)        
    Insurance             (6,874,550)        (1,410,580)        (181,510)        -        -        3,215        (8,463,425)        
        Claims         (6,177,896)        (1,020,803)        (101,646)        -        -        -        (7,300,345)        
        Acquisition costs         (479,776)        (360,656)        (75,190)        -        -        -        (915,622)        
        Other         (216,878)        (29,121)        (4,674)        -        -        3,215        (247,458)        
    Private pension             -        -        (62,096)        -        -        -        (62,096)        
        Benefit and redemption expenses         -        -        (45,211)        -        -        -        (45,211)        
        Acquisition costs         -        -        (15,635)        -        -        -        (15,635)        
        Other         -        -        (1,250)        -        -        -        (1,250)        
    Saving bonds, ASO, asset managment             (6,580)        -        -        (27,800)        (1,811)        -        (36,191)        
Gross operating margin                 621,669        281,882        56,890        (94)        33,960        (9,855)        984,452        
General and administrative expenses                 (444,138)        (266,664)        (51,276)        (31,989)        (22,335)        2,024        (814,378)        
Net investment income                 154,876        101,495        27,343        12,006        276        17,073        313,069        
Share of profit of investees income                 1,648        -        -        15,245        -        -        16,893        
Net non-operating income                 1,728        4,150        175        95    -        -        6,148        
Income before income tax and social contribution                 335,783        120,863        33,132        (4,737)        11,901        9,242        506,184        
    Income tax and social contribution             (156,340)        (56,551)        (15,503)        9,349        (5,569)        (4,324)        (228,938)        
Net income                 179,443        64,312        17,629        4,612        6,332        4,918        277,246        
    Owners of the Company             179,443        64,312        17,629        4,178        6,332        4,918        276,812        
    Non-controlling Interest             -        -        -        434        -        -        434     
 

Net income                 179,443        64,312        17,629        4,612        6,332        4,918        277,246        
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                Consolidated        

                

Quarter 
ended 

06/30/2018        

Description                 Health        
Property and 

casualty        

Life and 
private 

pension        
Savings 

bonds        
Asset 

management        Other        Total        
 

Operating revenue                  3,808,422        967,684        282,216        14,267        19,046        (6,027)        5,085,608        
    Insurance              3,793,734        958,855        125,537        -        -        69        4,878,195        
        Net premiums          3,793,732        958,626        125,014        -        -        (1,621)        4,875,751        
        Other          2        229        523        -        -        1,690        2,444        
    Private pension              -        -        156,679        -        -        -        156,679        
        Premiums, retained contributions and net asset 
management fee          -        -        156,421        -        -        -        156,421        
        Other          -        -        258        -        -        -        258        
    Saving bonds, ASO, asset managment              14,688        -        -        14,267        19,046        (6,096)        41,905        
    Other              -        8,829        -        -        -        -        8,829        
Change in premium technical reserves                  (21,220)        (111,005)        (124,605)        -        -        -        (256,830)        
    Insurance              (21,220)        (111,005)        3,040        -        -        -        (129,185)        
    Private pension              -        -        (127,645)        -        -        -        (127,645)        
Operating expenses                  (3,489,918)        (702,781)        (121,263)        (19,256)        (930)        1,913        (4,332,235)        
    Insurance              (3,485,914)        (702,781)        (88,967)        -        -        1,913        (4,275,749)        
        Claims          (3,148,331)        (511,192)        (55,656)        -        -        -        (3,715,179)        
        Acquisition costs          (239,997)        (180,072)        (38,480)        -        -        -        (458,549)        
        Other          (97,586)        (11,517)        5,169        -        -        1,913        (102,021)        
    Private pension              -        -        (32,296)        -        -        -        (32,296)        
        Benefit and redemption expenses          -        -        (24,078)        -        -        -        (24,078)        
        Acquisition costs          -        -        (7,712)        -        -        -        (7,712)        
        Other          -        -        (506)        -        -        -        (506)        
    Saving bonds, ASO, asset managment, Other             (4,004)        -        -        (19,256)        (930)        -        (24,190)        
Gross operating margin                  297,284        153,898        36,348        (4,989)        18,116        (4,114)        496,543        
General and administrative expenses                  (233,834)        (146,875)        (25,496)        (16,869)        (11,700)        761        (434,013)        
Net investment income                  75,273        51,905        23,219        6,321        130        11,330        168,178        
Share of profit of investees income                  709        -        -        6,745        -        -        7,454        
Net non-operating income                  419        1,966        60        21        -        -        2,466        
Income tax and social contribution                  139,851        60,894        34,131        (8,771)        6,546        7,977        240,628        
    Income tax and social contribution              (62,290)        (27,627)        (15,984)        7,195        (2,986)        (3,715)        (105,407)        
Net income                  77,561        33,267        18,147        (1,576)        3,560        4,262        135,221        
    Owners of the Company              77,561        33,267        18,147        (1,405)        3,560        4,262        135,392        
    Non-controlling Interest              -        -        -        (171)        -        -        (171)        
 

Net income                 77,561        33,267        18,147        (1,576)        3,560        4,262        135,221        
 
 
 
               Consolidated        

               

First half 
ended 

06/30/2017        

Description                 Health        
Property and 

casualty        

Life and 
private 

pension        
Savings 

bonds        
Asset 

Management        Other        Total        
 

Operating revenue               6,597,168        1,503,160        472,803        27,824        31,272        (13,225)        8,619,002        
   Insurance            6,571,625        1,484,734        211,335        -        -        (1,333)        8,266,361        
      Net premiums         6,563,517        1,474,747        211,253        -        -        (1,333)        8,248,184        
      Other         8,108        9,987        82        -        -        -        18,177        
   Private pension            -        -        261,468        -        -        -        261,468        
      Premiums, retained contributions and net asset management fee        -        -        260,908        -        -        -        260,908        
      Other         -        -        560        -        -        -        560        
   Saving bonds, ASO, asset managment            25,543        -        -        27,824        31,272        (11,892)        72,747        
   Other            -        18,426        -        -        -        -        18,426        
Change in premium technical reserves               (25,513)        183,681        (179,719)        -        -        -        (21,551)        
   Insurance            (25,513)        183,681        6,229        -        -        -        164,397        
   Private pension            -        -        (185,948)        -        -        -        (185,948)        
Operating expenses               (6,055,109)        (1,552,821)        (268,818)        (15,811)        (2,862)        2,383        (7,893,038)        
   Insurance            (6,050,628)        (1,552,794)        (202,039)        -        -        2,383        (7,803,078)        
      Claims         (5,452,726)        (1,139,252)        (97,974)        -        -        -        (6,689,952)        
      Acquisition costs         (410,368)        (390,105)        (72,201)        -        -        -        (872,674)        
      Other         (187,534)        (23,437)        (31,864)        -        -        2,383        (240,452)        
   Private pension            -        -        (66,779)        -        -        -        (66,779)        
      Benefit and redemption expenses         -        -        (51,040)        -        -        -        (51,040)        
      Acquisition costs         -        -        (14,771)        -        -        -        (14,771)        
      Other         -        -        (968)        -        -        -        (968)        
   Saving bonds, ASO, asset managment, Other            (4,481)        (27)        -        (15,811)        (2,862)        -        (23,181)        
Gross operating margin               516,546        134,020        24,266        12,013        28,410        (10,842)        704,413        
General and administrative expenses               (419,340)        (259,011)        (47,948)        (31,973)        (18,208)        1,688        (774,792)        
Net investment income               231,194        147,382        33,315        13,257        746        10,842        436,736        
Share of profit of investees income               3,551        -        -        15,085        -        -        18,636        
Net non-operating income               23        3,744        61        1        -        -        3,829        
Income before income tax and social contribution               331,974        26,135        9,694        8,383        10,948        1,688        388,822        
   Income tax and social contribution            (158,191)        (12,589)        (4,669)        3,228        (5,273)        (813)        (178,307)        
Net income               173,783        13,546        5,025        11,611        5,675        875        210,515        
   Owners of the Company            173,783        13,546        5,025        10,289        5,675        875        209,193        
   Non-controlling Interest            -        -        -        1,322        -        -        1,322        

 

Net income                 173,783        13,546        5,025        11,611     5,675        875        210,515        

 



 

 
 

44 

 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | 2Q18

 August,  2 2018

 
 

 

                   Consolidated        

                   

Quarter 
ended 

06/30/2017        

Description                 Health        
Property and 

casualty        

Life and 
private 

pension        
Savings 

bonds        
Asset 

Management        Other        Total        
 

Operating revenue                 3,318,630        780,483        236,469        12,952        15,956        (6,606)        4,357,884        
    Insurance             3,304,387        771,381        107,545        -        -        (807)        4,182,506        
        Net premiums         3,304,332        768,694        107,552        -        -        (807)        4,179,771        
        Other         55        2,687        (7)        -        -        -        2,735        
    Private pension             -        -        128,924        -        -        -        128,924        
        Premiums, retained contributions and net asset 
management fee         -        -        128,636        -        -        -        128,636        
        Other         -        -        288        -        -        -        288        
    Saving bonds, ASO, asset managment             14,243        -        -        12,952        15,956        (5,799)        37,352        
    Other             -        9,102        -        -        -        -        9,102        
Change in premium technical reserves                 (18,012)        66,913        (84,352)        -        -        -        (35,451)        
    Insurance             (18,012)        66,913        2,476        -        -        -        51,377        
    Private pension             -        -        (86,828)        -        -        -        (86,828)        
Operating expenses                 (3,130,470)        (759,995)        (138,772)        (5,090)        (1,713)        1,399        (4,034,641)        
    Insurance             (3,128,104)        (759,977)        (103,259)        -        -        1,399        (3,989,941)        
        Claims         (2,838,868)        (560,935)        (50,805)        -        -        -        (3,450,608)        
        Acquisition costs         (199,244)        (194,053)        (36,299)        -        -        -        (429,596)        
        Other         (89,992)        (4,989)        (16,155)        -        -        1,399        (109,737)        
    Private pension             -        -        (35,513)        -        -        -        (35,513)        
        Benefit and redemption expenses         -        -        (27,563)        -        -        -        (27,563)        
        Acquisition costs         -        -        (7,329)        -        -        -        (7,329)        
        Other         -        -        (621)        -        -        -        (621)        
    Saving bonds, ASO, asset managment, Other            (2,366)        (18)        -        (5,090)        (1,713)        -        (9,187)        
Gross operating margin                 170,148        87,401        13,345        7,862        14,243        (5,207)        287,792        
General and administrative expenses                 (195,785)        (125,172)        (22,907)        (14,478)        (7,701)        741        (365,302)        
Net investment income                 112,069        68,488        18,457        7,994        408        5,209        212,625        
Share of profit of investees income                 1,692        -        -        7,909        -        -        9,601        
Net non-operating income                 38        1,879        33        2        -        -        1,952        
Income before income tax and social contribution                88,162        32,596        8,928        9,289        6,950        743        146,668        
    Income tax and social contribution             (40,766)        (15,725)        (4,297)        (695)        (3,333)        (353)        (65,169)        
Net income                 47,396        16,871        4,631        8,594        3,617        390        81,499        
    Owners of the Company             47,396        16,871        4,631        7,684        3,617        390        80,589        
    Non-controlling Interest             -        -        -        910        -        -        910        

 

Net income                 47,396        16,871        4,631        8,594        3,617        390        81,499        

 

23.2. Loss ratio, acquisition cost and gross margin 

As at June 30, 2018 and 2017, SulAmérica has the following ratios by business unit, extracted from profit or loss: 

 
             Consolidated            
             First half ended 06/30/2018            
 
 

Description         Health        
Property and 

casualty        
Life and private 

pension        Total        
 

Loss ratio (a)         81.96%        59.73%        40.90%        76.90%        
Acquisition cost (b)         6.36%        21.10%        30.25%        9.65%        
Gross margin (c)         11.68%        19.17%        28.85%        13.45%        
 

 

 
             Consolidated        
             Quarter ended 06/30/2018        
 

Description         Health        
Property and 

casualty        
Life and private 

pension        Total        
 

Loss ratio (a)         82.77%        59.04%        42.21%        77.40%        
Acquisition cost (b)         6.31%        20.80%        29.19%        9.55%        
Gross margin (c)         10.92%        20.16%        28.60%        13.05%        
 

 
 
             Consolidated        
             First half ended 06/30/2017      
 

Description         Health        
Property and 

casualty        
Life and private 

pension        Total        
 

Loss ratio (a)         82.73%        67.54%        43.86%        78.70%        
Acquisition cost (b)         6.23%        23.13%    32.32%        10.27%        
Gross margin (c)         11.04%        9.33%        23.82%        11.03%        
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                     Consolidated              
                     Quarter ended 06/30/2017              
 
 

Description         Health        
Property and 

casualty        
Life and private 

pension        Total        
 

Loss ratio (a)         85.84%        65.93%        44.93%        80.81%        
Acquisition cost (b)         6.02%        22.81%        32.10%        10.06%        
Gross margin (c)         8.14%        11.26%        22.97%        9.13%        
 

 

 
The calculated ratios are as follows: 

(a)     Claims incurred to earned premiums; 
(b)     Acquisition cost to earned premiums; and 
(c) Gross margins to earned premiums. 
 

 
23.3. Written insurance premiums by region 

Written insurance premiums by region are as follows: 

 
               Consolidated        

               

First half 
ended 

06/30/2018        
 

Region         Health        
Property and 

casualty        
Life and private 

pension        Total        
 

Southeast         5,985,716        1,045,871        123,154        7,154,741        
South         194,801        321,075        74,619        590,495        
Northeast         1,004,550        207,536        17,334        1,229,420        
North         60,204        21,304        7,875        89,383        
Midwest         331,046        149,520        10,140        490,706        
 

Total         7,576,317        1,745,306        233,122        9,554,745        
 
 
   Consolidated        

   
Quarter ended 

06/30/2018        
 

Region         Health        
Property and 

casualty        
Life and private 

pension        Total        
 

Southeast         3,023,921        576,884        68,036        3,668,841        
South         98,096        185,254        38,384        321,734        
Northeast         504,113        123,366        9,298        636,777        
North         31,133        12,074        5,118        48,325        
Midwest         168,663        79,226        5,372        253,261        
 

Total         3,825,926        976,804        126,208        4,928,938        

 
 
  Consolidated        

  
First half ended 

06/30/2017        
 

Region         Health        
Property and 

casualty        
Life and private 

pension        Total        
 

Southeast         5,169,280        911,106        126,695        6,207,081        
South         177,681        274,177        68,373        520,231        
Northeast         923,313        175,410        7,645        1,106,368        
North         46,621        17,908        5,935        70,464        
Midwest         298,429        124,564        8,501        431,494        

 

Total         6,615,324        1,503,165        217,149        8,335,638        

 
 
    Consolidated        

    
Quarter ended 

06/30/2017        
 

Region         Health        
Property and 

casualty        
Life and private 

pension        Total        
 

Southeast         2,594,234        479,628        64,709        3,138,571        
South         93,581        143,844        34,970        272,395        
Northeast         463,769        89,329        4,204        557,302        
North         23,706        9,175        2,523        35,404        
Midwest         149,036        61,934        4,205        215,175        

 

Total         3,324,326        783,910        110,611        4,218,847        
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23.4. Assets and liabilities by segment 

Assets and liabilities by segment are as follows: 

 
 
       Consolidated        
       06/30/2018        

 

Description         Health        
Property and 

casualty        

Life and 
private 

pension        Savings bonds        
Asset 

management        Other        Total        
 

Assets                
Marketable securities         4,284,933        1,676,149        6,052,311        838,271        49,154        1,194,877        14,095,695        
Receivables         834,733        1,904,327        80,319        11,386        1,783        5,378        2,837,926        
Taxes         437,760        222,110        135,310        34,545        7,118        161,399        998,242        
Deferred acquisition costs         737,140        360,256        60,543        -        -        -        1,157,939        
Judicial deposits         1,449,806        934,063        229,565        108,221        29,883        136,062        2,887,600        
Other assets         755,894        241,362        899,877        99,088        8,208        87,595        2,092,024        
Total         8,500,266        5,338,267        7,457,925        1,091,511        96,146        1,585,311        24,069,426        
Liabilities and equity                
Accounts payable         520,654        236,594        43,268        700,788        15,288        19,618        1,536,210        
Loans and financing         4,431        1,373        -        -        -        1,455,317        1,461,121        
Insurance and reinsurance liabilities         137,873        100,935        67,675        3,472        2        276        310,233        
Technical reserves - Insurance         2,973,973        2,522,888        6,910,882        -        -        -        12,407,743        
Escrow provisions         1,306,345        726,282        189,189        104,307        25,035        113,901        2,465,059        
Other liabilities         255        24,309        373        -        31        44        25,012        
Total         4,943,531        3,612,381        7,211,387        808,567        40,356        1,589,156        18,205,378        
 

 
 
 
       Consolidated        
       12/31/2017        

Description         Health        
Property and 

casualty        

Life and 
private 

pension        Savings bonds        
Asset 

management        Other        Total        
Assets                
Marketable securities         4,129,484        1,836,178        6,439,634        793,427        56,238        1,370,217        14,625,178        
Receivables         783,068        1,806,292        69,962        27,247        1,180        4,850        2,692,599        
Taxes         415,836        234,443        146,882        23,492        4,661        196,061        1,021,375        
Deferred acquisition costs         673,737        361,256        59,336        -        -        -        1,094,329        
Judicial deposits         1,420,195        942,903        223,851        106,168        29,308        133,937        2,856,362        
Other Assets         473,772        205,145        179,822        139,710        6,657        154,569        1,159,675        
Total         7,896,092        5,386,217        7,119,487        1,090,044        98,044        1,859,634        23,449,518        
Liabilities and equity                
Accounts payable         511,777        244,775        30,937        670,562        19,255        261,146        1,738,452        
Loans and financing         3,091        -        -        -        -        1,581,442        1,584,533        
Insurance and reinsurance liabilities         130,626        95,630        61,177        2,005        -        505        289,943        
Technical reserves - insurance         2,684,350        2,484,710        6,579,024        -        -        -        11,748,084        
Escrow provisions         1,257,045        721,306        218,089        88,504        24,506        110,097        2,419,547        
Other liabilities         -        28,018        432        -        75        43        28,568        
Total         4,586,889        3,574,439        6,889,659        761,071        43,836        1,953,233        17,809,127        
 

 

 

 

24. Operating revenue of insurance – Net premiums 

 
 
        Consolidated        

 

Description             
First half ended 

06/30/2018        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2018        
First half ended 

06/30/2017        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2017        
 

Net premiums                 
    Insurance premiums         9,561,180        4,928,627        8,340,982        4,222,812        
    Reinsurance ceded         (17,086)        (6,092)        (16,029)        (9,820)        
    Coinsurance ceded         1,292        1,292        960        960        
    Contribution for risk coverage (a)         9,359        5,111        9,725        4,895        
    Total         9,554,745        4,928,938        8,335,638        4,218,847        
Sales tax                 
    PIS         (14,776)        (7,363)        (12,064)        (5,357)        
    COFINS         (90,914)        (45,305)        (74,215)        (33,130)        
    ISS         (1,336)        (519)        (1,175)        (589)        
    Total         (107,026)        (53,187)        (87,454)        (39,076)        
 

Total             9,447,719        4,875,751        8,248,184        4,179,771        
 

(a) Refers to the risk portion of private pension contracts. 
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25. Operating revenue of private pension – Net premium, 
income and management fees 

 
        Consolidated        
 

Description             
First half ended 

06/30/2018        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2018        
First half ended 

06/30/2017        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2017        
 

Premiums, retained contributions and net asset management fee                 
    Retained contributions         283,797        144,240    239,394        118,202        
    Asset management fee         24,203        12,387        22,635        11,136        
    Total         308,000        156,627        262,029        129,338        
Sales tax                 
    PIS         (87)        (29)        (157)        (98)        
    COFINS         (535)        (177)        (964)        (604)        
    Total         (622)        (206)        (1,121)        (702)        
 

Total             307,378        156,421     260,908        128,636        
 
 

26. Change in technical reserves of insurance and private 
pension 

 
      Consolidated        
 

Description             
First half ended 

06/30/2018        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2018        
First half ended 

06/30/2017        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2017        
 

Insurance               
    Unearned premium reserve         (67,247)        (136,543)        167,856        51,196        
    Additional provisions for premiums and contributions         5,259        7,409        (2,543)        (183)        
    Mathematical reserve for benefits granted         (196)        524        (1,087)        222        
    Other         425        (575)        171        142        
Total - insurance             (61,759)        (129,185)        164,397        51,377        
Private pension               
    Mathematical reserve for benefits  granted         (157,882)        (84,448)        (117,201)        (58,176)        
    Mathematical reserve for benefits to be granted         (93,633)        (43,414)        (74,609)        (32,276)        
    Contribution deficiency reserve         1,748        (376)        5,824        3,803        
    Other         700        593        38        (179)        
Total - private pension             (249,067)        (127,645)        (185,948)        (86,828)        

 
 

 
 

27. Operating expenses of insurance 

27.1. Claims 

    Consolidated        
 

Description         
First half ended 

06/30/2018        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2018        
First half ended 

06/30/2017        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2017        
 

Direct claims         (7,214,774)        (3,779,309)        (6,694,409)        (3,497,621)        
Claims recoverable         8,168        4,230     15,500        5,841        
Changes in IBNR reserves         (336,166)        (70,629)        (234,401)        (73,430)        
Salvage and recoveries         253,177        136,349        226,320        117,268        
Retained benefits         (1,389)        (1,114)        (653)        (359)        
Assistance service         (9,361)        (4,706)        (2,309)        (2,307)        

 

Total         (7,300,345)        (3,715,179)        (6,689,952)        (3,450,608)        
 

 
 
27.2. Acquisition costs 

    Consolidated        
 

Description         
First half ended 

06/30/2018        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2018        
First half ended 

06/30/2017        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2017        
 

Commissions         (894,487)        (470,005)        (789,456)        (394,425)        
Change in deferred acquisition costs         27,918        32,019        (59,536)        (18,656)        
Recovery of commissions         278        178        174        94        
Other acquisition costs         (49,331)        (20,741)        (23,856)        (16,609)        

 

Total         (915,622)        (458,549)        (872,674)        (429,596)        
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27.3. Other operating expenses 

 
    Consolidated        

 

Description         
First half ended 

06/30/2018        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2018        
First half ended 

06/30/2017        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2017        
 

Recognition of lawsuits and other insurance operation         (60,920)        (22,727)        (77,075)        (38,678)        
Insurance operation expenses         (42,614)        (20,975)        (37,573)        (18,111)        
Pro-labore         (63,751)        (31,627)        (66,322)        (32,832)        
Technical services         (2,707)        (1,366)        (3,575)        (1,757)        
Impairment of premiums and other receivables         (64,270)        (18,528)        (43,854)        (12,137)        
Collection expenses         (7,959)        (4,175)        (6,642)        (3,609)       
Insurance management fee         (5,237)        (2,623)        (5,411)        (2,613)        

 

Total         (247,458)        (102,021)        (240,452)        (109,737)        

 
 

28. Operating expenses of private pension 

28.1. Benefit and redemption expenses 

 
    Consolidated        

 

Description         
First half ended 

06/30/2018        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2018        
First half ended 

06/30/2017        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2017        
 

Benefit and redemption         (45,211)        (24,078)        (51,040)        (27,563)        
 

Total         (45,211)        (24,078)        (51,040)        (27,563)        

 
 
 

28.2. Acquisition costs 

 
    Consolidated        
 

Description         
First half ended 

06/30/2018        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2018        
First half ended 

06/30/2017        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2017        
 

Commissions         (9,069)        (4,272)        (8,807)        (4,398)        
Change in deferred acquisition costs         (6,566)        (3,440)        (5,964)        (2,931)        
 

Total         (15,635)        (7,712)        (14,771)        (7,329)        

 
 

29. Profit or loss from savings bonds operations 
 
            Consolidated        
 

Description                 
First half ended 

06/30/2018  
Quarter ended 

06/30/2018        
First half ended 

06/30/2017        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2017        
 

Operating revenue                     
    Revenue from administrative charges of saving bonds certificates             22,893        10,675    24,969        11,292        
    Sales tax                 
        PIS         (154)        (72)        (170)        (77)        
        COFINS         (946)        (441)        (1,050)        (478)        
        Total         (1,100)   (513)        (1,220)        (555)        
    Other operating income             5,313        3,830        3,011        1,618        
Total of revenues                 27,106        13,992        26,760        12,355        
Operating expense                     
    Acquisition cost             (12,287)        (5,573)        (12,458)        (5,845)        
    Other operating expenses             (15,513)        (13,683)        (3,353)        755        
Total of expenses                 (27,800)        (19,256)        (15,811)        (5,090)        
 

Total                 (694)        (5,264)        10,949        7,265        
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30. Profit or loss from health administrative services only 
plans 

            Consolidated     
 

Description                 
First half ended 

06/30/2018        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2018        
First half ended 

06/30/2017        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2017        
 

Operating revenue                     
    Services revenue             32,890    15,830        28,932        15,626        
    Sales tax                 
        PIS         (326)        (106)        (385)        (146)        
        COFINS         (2,004)        (650)        (2,368)        (895)        
        ISS         (811)        (386)        (636)        (342)        
    Total of revenues             29,749        14,688        25,543        14,243        
Operating expenses                     
    Cost of service             (1,590)        (815)    (1,579)        (875)        
    Medical audit             (1,933)        (1,038)        (1,531)        (831)        
    Other             (3,057)        (2,151)        (1,371)        (660)        
    Total of expenses             (6,580) (4,004)        (4,481)        (2,366)        
 

Total                 23,169        10,684        21,062        11,877        

 

31. Asset management 
     Consolidated        
 

Description             
First half ended 

06/30/2018        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2018        
First half ended 

06/30/2017        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2017        
 

Operating revenue                  
    Administration fee             24,978        13,157        20,933        10,405        
    Performance fee             1,533        1,307        1,537        1,377        
    Sales tax              
        PIS         (248)        (132)        (216)        (110)        
        COFINS         (1,260)        (670)        (1,139)        (578)        
        ISS         (792)        (437)        (671)        (340)        
    Total of revenues             24,211        13,225        20,444        10,754        
Operating expenses                  
    Commision and brokerage             (409)        (225)        (440)        (111)        
    Custody and controllership             (1,278)        (671)        (2,222)        (1,501)        
    Other             (124)        (34)        (200)        (101)        
    Total of expenses             (1,811)        (930)        (2,862)        (1,713)        
 

Total                                     22,400        12,295        17,582                                        9,041        

 
 

32.   Administrative expenses 

 
    Company        

 

Description         
First half ended 

06/30/2018        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2018        
First half ended 

06/30/2017        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2017        
 

Personnel expenses         (3,066)        (1,437)        (2,879)        (1,439)        
Stock option plan         (10)        (4)        (9)        (5)        
Third-party services         (3,799)        (2,139)        (2,836)        (1,086)        
Location and operation         (567)        (277)        (632)   (328)        
Tax expenses         (11,004)        (10,510)        (1,075)        (303)        
Other         (1,554)        (419)        (1,735)        (769)        

 

Total         (20,000)        (14,786)        (9,166)        (3,930)  

 

 
    Consolidated        

Description         
First half ended 

06/30/2018        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2018        
First half ended 

06/30/2017        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2017        
 

Personnel expenses         (377,526)        (193,066)     (332,655)        (158,930)        

Stock option plan         (6,844)        (3,232)        (7,118)        (3,674)        

Third-party services         (184,372)        (93,917)        (204,364)        (102,096)        

Location and operation         (99,680)        (49,795)        (107,888)        (54,083)        

Profit sharing         (35,676)        (17,834)        (31,752)        (15,502)        

Tax expenses         (32,012)        (22,210)        (19,191)        (7,681)       

Other         (78,268)        (53,959)        (71,824)        (23,336)        
 

Total         (814,378)        (434,013)        (774,792)        (365,302)        
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Employee benefits, included in line item “Personnel expenses”, are detailed in the following table, not including management fees: 

 
    Consolidated        

 

Description         
First half ended 

06/30/2018        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2018        
First half ended 

06/30/2017        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2017        
 

Remuneration         (183,906)        (93,160)        (168,865)        (84,004)        
Social charges         (61,749)        (31,866)        (56,382)        (28,724)        
Indemnity and severance         (11,382)        (6,362)        (15,491)        (5,752)        
Food voucher and transportation voucher        (39,870)        (18,910)        (37,227)        (17,481)        
Health and dental insurance         (20,264)        (11,763)        (12,403)        (7,556)        
Private pension         (3,328)        (1,550)        (3,305)        (1,874)        
Other         (6,724)        (3,698)        (5,924)        (3,674)        

 

Total         (327,223)        (167,309)        (299,597)        (149,065)        

 
 

33.   Investment income and expenses 

The breakdown of the results of investment operations and the breakdown between investment expenses and income, including the 
respective accounting classification, are as shown in the following tables: 

 
33.1.  Investment income and expenses per type 

        Company        
 

Description             
First half ended 

06/30/2018        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2018        
First half ended 

06/30/2017        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2017        
 

Marketable securities             12,281        4,731        15,348        3,447        
    At Fair value through profit or loss         12,281        4,731        15,348        3,447        
Interest and adjustment for inflation of issued debentures             (57,368)        (27,743)        (75,586)        (32,533)        
Other             2,831        850        4,855        1,994        
 

Total             (42,256)        (22,162)        (55,383)        (27,092)        

 
 
        Consolidated        
 

Description             
First half ended 

06/30/2018        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2018        
First half ended 

06/30/2017        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2017        
 

Marketable securities             566,622        261,563        735,791        304,187        
    At Fair value through profit or loss         241,522        85,535        392,814        166,773        
    Available for sale         223,450        112,874        313,385        145,062        
    Held to maturity         101,650        63,154        29,592        (7,648)        
Interest and adjustment for inflation of loans and financing             (57,368)        (27,743)        (75,586)        (32,533)        
Insurance operations - private pension and VGBL             (248,798)        (103,422)        (277,184)        (90,840)        
Insurance operations - others             53,562        27,816        57,800        29,680        
Interest and monetary variation on judicial deposits and accrued liabilities for 
lawsuits             (18,858)        (3,733)        (18,015)        (6,802)        
Arreas interest             (34)        (19)        (154)        (15)        
Other             17,943        13,716        14,084        8,948        
 

 

Total          313,069        168,178        436,736        212,625        

 
 

33.2.  Investment income 

  Company        
 

Description         
First half ended 

06/30/2018        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2018        
First half ended 

06/30/2017        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2017        
 

Appreciation of investment fund quotas         12,508        4,890        15,562        3,572        
Inflation adjustment and interest on escrow deposits         24        11        46        22        
Other         3,186        1,026        5,151        2,141        

 

Total         15,718        5,927        20,759        5,735        
 

 
 

    Consolidated        
 
 

Description         
First half ended 

06/30/2018        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2018        
First half ended 

06/30/2017        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2017        
 
 

Appreciation of investment fund quotas         575,975        308,925        578,187        265,631        
Fixed income securities - private         28,717        13,419        77,040        36,566        
Fixed income securities - government         239,873        126,654        277,639        126,180        
Equity securities         -        -        609        502        
Insurance operations         76,776        39,200        84,004        41,869        
Inflation adjustment and interest on escrow deposits         68,952        39,965        92,648        44,930        
Other         39,782        24,706        34,350        18,582        
 

Total         1,030,075        552,869        1,144,477        534,260        
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33.3.  Investment expenses 

 
 

    Company        
 

Description         
First half ended 

06/30/2018        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2018        
First half ended 

06/30/2017        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2017        
 

Devaluation of investment fund quotas and fixed and variable income private 
and government securities         (227)        (159)        (214)        (125)        
Interest and adjustment for inflation of loans and financing         (57,368)        (27,743)        (75,586)        (32,533)        
Inflation and interest on provision for legal claims, tax obligations and lawsuits        (38)        (12)        (42)        (19)        
Other         (341)        (175)        (300)        (150)     
 

Total         (57,974)        (28,089)        (76,142)        (32,827)        
 

 
 
 
 
 

    Consolidated        
 
 

Description         
First half ended 

06/30/2018        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2018        
First half ended 

06/30/2017        
Quarter ended 

06/30/2017        
 
 

Insurance operations         (23,214)        (11,384)        (26,204)        (12,189)        
Devaluation of investment fund quotas and fixed and variable income private 
and government securities         (277,943)        (187,435)        (197,684)        (124,692)        
Interest and adjustment for inflation of loans and financing         (57,368)        (27,743)        (75,586)        (32,533)        
Inflation and interest on provisions for legal claims, tax obligations and lawsuits        (87,810)        (43,698)        (110,663)        (51,732)        
inflation and interest adjustment on technical reserves - private pension 
operations and VGBL         (248,798)        (103,422)        (277,184)        (90,840)        
Late payment interest         (34)        (19)        (154)        (15)        
Other         (21,839)        (10,990)        (20,266)        (9,634)        
 

Total         (717,006)        (384,691)        (707,741)        (321,635)        
 

 
 
 

34. Statement of income tax and social contribution 
calculation 

Income tax and social contribution, calculated based on statutory rates, are reconciled to the amounts recorded in the statements of profit 
or loss, as follows: 

 
  
      Company        

    
First half ended 

06/30/2018         
Quarter ended 

06/30/2018        
 

Description           Income tax        
Social 

contribution        Income tax        
Social 

contribution        
 

Net income before accrued liabilities for Income tax and social contribution                 290,049        290,049        157,172        157,172        
    Income tax and social contribution tax expenses at statutory rates             (72,512)        (26,104)        (39,293)        (14,145)      
Nominal rate                 25%        9%        25%        9%        
Current:                     
    Additions:                 
        Interest on shareholders' capital         (24,921)        (8,972)        (24,921)        (8,972)       
        Accrued liabilities for lawsuits and tax and contributions liabilities         (252)        (91)        (243)        (88)        
        Non-deductible expenses         (125)        (45)        (98)        (35)        
        Others additions         -        -        13        -        
    Subtotal             (25,298)        (9,108)        (25,249)        (9,095)        
    Deductions:                 
        Share of profit         88,076        31,707        48,530     17,470        
        Inflation adjustment on escrow deposits         6        2        3        1        
        Others deductions         1        1        1        1        
    Subtotal             88,083        31,710        48,534   17,472        
    Tax loss carryforwards:                 
        Recognition         -        -        6,296        2,266        
        Allowance         2,918        1,050        2,918        1,050        
Expenses from current income tax and social contribution                 (6,809)        (2,452)        (6,794)        (2,452)        
Deferred:                     
    Reversal of deferred tax assets on Income tax and social contribution loss             (2,918)        (1,050)  (9,214)        (3,316)        
    Recognition of tax debit related to monetary variation on judicial deposits             (6)        (2)        (3)        (1)        
Expenses from deferred income tax and social contribution                 (2,924)        (1,052)        (9,217)        (3,317)        
Expenses from income tax and social contribution                 (9,733)        (3,504)        (16,011)        (5,769)        
Effective rate                 3.36%        1.21%        10.19%        3.67%        
Effective rate combined                  4.57%         13.86%        
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      Company        

    
First half ended 

06/30/2017         
Quarter ended 

06/30/2017        
 

Description           Income tax        
Social 

contribution        Income tax        
Social 

contribution        
 

Net income before accrued liabilities for income and social contribution tax               187,450        187,450        70,230        70,230        
   Income tax and social contribution expenses at statutory rates            (46,863)        (16,871)        (17,558)        (6,321)        
Nominal rate               25%        9%        25%        9%        
Current:                   
   Additions:                
      Accrued liabilities for lawsuits and tax and contributions liabilities         (14)        (5)        (7)        (2)        
      Non-deductible expenses         (78)        (28)        (72)        (26)        
      Others additions         (80)        -        (80)        -        
   Subtotal            (172)        (33)        (159)        (28)        
   Deductions:                
      Share of profit         62,999        22,681        25,312        9,114        
      Inflation adjustment on escrow deposits         12        4        6        2        
      Others deductions         1        1        -        -        
   Subtotal            63,012        22,686        25,318        9,116        
   Tax loss carryforwards:                
      Recognition         (16,060)        (5,782)        (7,684)        (2,767)        
Expenses from current income tax and social contribution               (83)        -        (83)        -        
Deferred:                   
   Recognition / (reversal) of deferred tax assets on income and social contribution tax loss           16,059        5,782        7,683        2,767        
   Recognition / (reversal) of deferred tax assets on  temporary differences            14   5        7        2        
   (Recognition / reversal of tax debit related to monetary variation on judicial deposits)           (12)        (4)        (6)        (2)        
   (Recognition / reversal impairment)            (13)        (5)        (7)        (2)        
Income from deferred income tax and social contribution               16,048        5,778        7,677        2,765        
Income / (expenses) from income tax and social contribution               15,965        5,778        7,594        2,765        
Effective rate               (8.52%)        (3.08%)        (10.81%)        (3.94%)        
Effective rate combined                (11.60%)         (14.75%)        

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      Consolidated        

    
First half ended 

06/30/2018         
Quarter ended 

06/30/2018        
 

Description           Income tax        
Social 

contribution        Income tax        
Social 

contribution        
 

Net income before accrued liabilities for income and social contribution tax                 506,184        506,184        240,628        240,628        
    Income tax and social contribution  expenses at statutory rates             (126,546)        (101,237)        (60,157)        (48,126)        
    Social contribution's rate difference (a)             -        14,677        -        11,782        
Nominal rate                 25%        20%        25%        20%        
Current:                     
    Additions:                 
        Accrued liabilities for lawsuits and tax and contributions liabilities         (17,615)        (13,703)        (7,239)        (5,545)        
        Non-deductible expenses         (11,128)        (2,890)        (6,245)        (2,068)        
        Impairment         (8,918)        (7,029)        (1,474)        (1,131)        
        Charges on profit sharing         (5,149)        (4,002)        (3,956)        (3,069)        
        Others         (4,417)        (3,162)        (3,684)        (2,164)   
    Subtotal             (47,227)        (30,786)        (22,598)        (13,977)        
    Deductions:                 
        Monetary variation on judicial deposits         5,768        4,383        5,188        4,039        
        Share of profit         4,223        3,197        1,863        1,413        
        Reversal of non-deductible provisions         7,639        5,791        (1,125)        (1,081)        
    Subtotal             17,630        13,371        5,926 4,371        
    Tax loss carryforwards:                 
        Recognition (b)         -        -        6,618        2,524        
        Allowance (b)         5,391        2,518        4,159        1,746        
    Subtotal             5,391        2,518        10,777        4,270        
    Fiscal tax incentive reduction             3,128        -        1,266        -        
Expenses from current income tax and social contribution                 (147,624)        (101,457)        (64,786)        (41,680)        
Deferred:                     
    Reversal of deferred tax assets on income tax and social contribution  loss             (5,388)        (4,786)        (10,815)        (6,571)        
    Recognition of deferred tax assets on  temporary differences             21,835        2,342        14,326        2,439        
    (Recognition / reversal of tax debit related to monetary variation on judicial deposits)            1,318        2,420        (529)  75        
    Reversal impairment             1,766        636        1,569        565        
Income / (expenses) from deferred income tax and social contribution                 19,531        612        4,551        (3,492)        
Expenses from income tax and social contribution                 (128,093)        (100,845)        (60,235)        (45,172)        
Effective rate                 25.31%        19.92%        25.03%        18.77%        
Effective rate combined                  45.23%         43.80%        
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      Consolidated        

    
First half ended 

06/30/2017         
Quarter ended 

06/30/2017        
 

Description           Income tax        
Social 

contribution        Income tax        
Social 

contribution        
 

Net income before accrued liabilities for income and social contribution tax               388,822        388,822        146,668        146,668        
   Income tax and social contribution  expenses at statutory rates            (97,206)   (77,764)        (36,667)        (29,333)        
   Social contribution's rate difference (a)            -        5,710        -        2,384        
Nominal rate               25%        20%        25%        20%        
Current:                   
   Additions:                
       Accrued liabilities for lawsuits and tax and contributions liabilities                (23,642)        (18,532)        (12,879)        (10,115)        
      Non-deductible expenses         (5,991)        (2,135)        (3,446)        (1,392)        
      Impairment         (5,056)        (4,062)        450        308        
      Charges on profit sharing         (4,498)        (3,509)        (3,330)        (2,629)        
      Nondectuctible reserves         (1,035)        (654)        (1,035)        (654)        
      Others         -        -        986        2,239        
   Subtotal            (40,222)        (28,892)        (19,254)        (12,243)        
   Deductions:                
      Inflation adjustment on escrow deposits         19,030        14,785        9,099        7,072        
      Share of profit         4,659        3,337        2,400        1,734        
      Reversal of non-deductible provisions         -        -        (1,242)        (1,005)        
      Others deductions         876        238        876        238        
   Subtotal            24,565        18,360        11,133        8,039        
   Tax loss carryforwards:                
      Recognition (b)         (17,526)        (6,965)        (2,291)        1,564        
      Allowance (b)         2,258        1,089        1,147        614        
   Subtotal            (15,268)        (5,876)        (1,144)        2,178        
   Fiscal tax incentive reduction            2,877        -        1,470        -        
Expenses from current income tax and social contribution               (125,254)        (88,462)        (44,462)        (28,975)        
Deferred:                   
   Recognition / (reversal) of deferred tax assets on income tax and social contribution loss           15,230        5,846        1,159        (2,166)        
   Recognition / (reversal) of deferred tax assets on  temporary differences            36,310        19,792        20,842        10,664        
   (Recognition) / reversal of tax debit related to monetary variation on judicial deposits           (20,698)        (12,731)        (12,092)        (7,696)        
   Recognition / (reversal) impairment            (7,782)        (558)        (2,027)        (416)        
Income / (expenses) from deferred income tax and social contribution               23,060        12,349        7,882        386        
Income / (expenses) from income tax and social contribution               (102,194)        (76,113)        (36,580)        (28,589)        
Effective rate               26.28%        19.58%        24.94%        19.49%        
Effective rate combined                45.86%         44.43%        

 

(a) Refers to the difference in the social contribution rate between financial and equivalent companies (20% - 15% up to August 31, 2015) and non-financial subsidiaries (9%); and 
(b) The recognized amounts refer to the group companies that recorded tax loss for the period, and the offsets were made by companies that recorded taxable profit, based on the 

limits provided for in the Law. 

 

 

35. Income tax and social contribution on the adjustments 
directly allocated to comprehensive income 

 
 
   Consolidated        

   
First half ended 

06/30/2018        
 

Description         
Financial assets 

available for sale        
Defined benefit pension 

plan        Total        
 

Tax base         (34,692)        -        (34,692)        
Income tax         8,673        -        8,673        
Social contribution         5,260        -        5,260        
Rate difference (a)         (419)        -        (419)        
 

Total         13,514        -        13,514        
Net         (21,178)        -        (21,178)        
 

 
 
   Consolidated        

   
Quarter ended 

06/30/2018        
 

Description         
Financial assets 

available for sale        
Defined benefit pension 

plan        Total        
 

Tax base         (53,544)        -        (53,544)        
Income tax         13,386        -        13,386        
Social contribution         8,052        -        8,052        
Rate difference (a)         (341)        -        (682)        
 

 Total                                       21,097                                            -             21,097 
 Net                                   (32,447)                                           -                        (32,447) 
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   Consolidated   

   
First half ended 

06/30/2017        
 

Description         
Financial assets 

available for sale        
Defined benefit pension 

plan        Total        
 

Tax base         27,919        (1,351)        26,568        
Income tax         (6,980) 338        (6,642)        
Social contribution         (4,271)        202        (4,069)        
Rate difference (a)         211        (10)        201        
 

Total         (11,040)        530        (10,510)        
Net         16,879        (821)        16,058        
 

 
 
   Consolidated        

   
Quarter ended 

06/30/2017        
 

Description         
Financial assets 

available for sale        
Defined benefit pension 

plan        Total        
 

Tax base         (5,967)        -        (5,967)        
Income tax         1,492        -        1,492        
Social contribution         975        -        975        
Rate difference (a)         82        -        82        
 

Total         2,549        -        2,549    
Net         (3,418)        -        (3,418)        
 

(a) It refers to the difference in the social contribution rate between financial and equivalent companies (20%) and non-financial subsidiaries (9%). 
 

36. Rental agreements 

Rio de Janeiro 

On December 17, 2007, SALIC entered into a rental agreement for a property in Rio de Janeiro. The rental period is ten years, counted as 
from April 18, 2009, and can be extended to an additional sixty-month period. During this period, SALIC has agreed to pay 10 annual rents 
of R$13,712, adjusted annually, or after the shortest period established by the Law, by the accumulated IGP-M variation, released by 
Fundação Getúlio Vargas. The amount recorded in income, up to June 30, 2018, corresponds to R$16,202 (R$15,573 as at June 30, 
2017). This rental agreement contains clauses that restrict the capacity of SALIC and the landlord of unilaterally terminating the 
agreement. The voluntary unilateral termination will give rise to the payment of indemnity to the other party, according to the conditions 
established in the agreement.  

 

São Paulo 

On July 4, 2013, CIA. SAÚDE signed a rental contract of the new headquarters of SulAmérica in São Paulo. The rental period is ten years, 
counted as from June 15, 2015, which can be automatically renewed for five-year period in three consecutive cycles. During the contract 
period, CIA. SAÚDE has agreed to monthly pay the original amount of R$2,000, annually adjusted in August by the accumulated IGP-M 
variation. The amount recorded in income, up to June 30, 2018, corresponds to R$14,380 (R$13,614 as at June 30, 2017). The Lease Act 
and the contract have provisions that impede landlords to unilaterally terminate the rental contract; however, CIA. SAÚDE can do it, 
provided that the fine is paid.  

 

37. Other information - Insurance 

As at June 30, 2018, SulAmérica had coverage against property damages of R$424,578 (R$441,176 as at December 31, 2017), general 
liability of R$30,000 (R$111,000 as at December 31, 2017) and rental loss, electrical damage and glass breakage of R$35,368 (R$15,529 
as at December 31, 2017), totaling a coverage of R$489,946 (R$567,705 as at December 31, 2017).  

 

38. Transactions not involving cash or cash equivalents in 
investing and financing activities 

The Company increased with interest on capital the capital of SALIC in the amount of R$41,894, the capital of SAEPAR in the amount of 
R$38,333, and the capital of CIA SAÚDE in the amount of R$27,700, as described in Note 13.1. 
 
In view of the reverse split of the subsidiary Sulacap, as described in Note 4, the amount of R$17,929 was recognized in liabilities in the 
line item “Accounts payable”. 
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Other information considered material by the Company 

(In thousands of Brazilian Reais – R$, except as otherwise stated) 
 

 

1. Introduction 

 
Sul América S.A. is a holding company that mainly invests in companies that operates in the health and private pension segment, we 
have adjusted the annual consolidated information for purposes of improving its presentation. In view of the fact that the disclosure 
format of annual information of holding companies established by the Empresas.Net System differs from the previously mentioned 
publication format, we present a comparison and the consolidated statement of operations and the consolidated statement of income for 
the six-month period ended June 30, 2018. 

 

 

 

1.1. Comparison between the publication format required from companies that 
operate insurance and private pension and CVM/ITR publication models 

 

 
Statements of financial position - Assets 

       Consolidated 

06/30/2018 12/31/2017 

 
Current Assets 

 1.01.03.01 Empresas.Net Customers   2,027,818    1,974,166  

 
Receivables  2,027,818    1,974,166  

1.01.06 Empresas.Net Tax Recoverable   130,501   225,348  

 
Taxes   130,501  225,348  

1.01.08 Empresas.Net Other Current Assets  735,809   695,632  
1.01.08.01 Empresas.Net Non-current Assets for Sale 49,082   51,103  

 
Salvages for sale   49,082    51,103  

1.01.08.03 Empresas.Net Other  686,727   644,529  

 
Reinsurance assets 38,927   25,167  
Deferred Acquisition Costs  617,324   596,212  
Other 30,476   23,150  

Non-current Assets 
 Long-term Assets 
 1.02.01.03 Empresas.Net Accounts Receivable   810,108    718,433  

 
Receivables   810,108   718,433  

1.02.01.06 Empresas.Net Deferred Taxes   867,741   796,027  

 
Taxes   867,741   796,027  

1.02.01.09 Empresas.Net Other Non-Current Assets  3,442,205    3,365,180  

 
Judicial deposits 2,887,600  2,856,362  
Reinsurance assets   8,944  7,700  
Deferred acquisition costs   540,615    498,117  

    Other   5,046  3,001  
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Statements of financial position - Liabilities 

       Consolidado 
06/30/2018 12/31/2017 

Current Liabilities 
 2.01.01 Empresas.Net Social Obligations and Labor 69,480  52,790  

2.01.03 Empresas.Net Tax  304,632   329,348  
2.01.05 Empresas.Net Other Obligations   1,448,755  1,621,419  

 
Accounts payable  1,504,720   1,705,982  
Insurance and reinsurance liabilities  310,233  289,943  
Other 7,914    7,632  

2.01.04 Empresas.Net Loans and Financing   135,594   299,988  

 
Loans and financing   135,594  299,988  

2.01.06 Empresas.Net Provisions   6,856,655   6,500,337  

 
Technical Reserves - Insurance  6,793,936  6,422,085  
Judicial provisions  62,719  78,252  

Non-current Liabilities 
 2.02.02 Empresas.Net Other Obligations 48,588  53,406  

 
Accounts Payable 31,490  32,470  
Other  17,098    20,936  

2.02.04 Empresas.Net Provisions   8,016,147   7,667,294  
2.02.04.01 Empresas.Net Provisions Tax, Social Security, Labor and Civil  2,402,340    2,341,295  

 
Judicial provisions   2,402,340   2,341,295  

2.02.04.02 Empresas.Net Other   5,613,807   5,325,999  
    Technical Reserves - Insurance   5,613,807  5,325,999  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Statements of profit or loss 

       Consolidated 

06/30/2018 03/31/2017 

3.01 Empresas.Net Revenue from Sales and Services   9,546,164    8,597,451  

 
Insurance 9,450,278  8,266,361  
Private pension  307,881   261,468  
Savings bonds  27,106  26,760  
ASO  29,749  25,543  
Asset management  24,211    20,444  
Other   17,765  18,426  
Changes in premium technical reserves - insurance   (61,759)  164,397  
Changes in premium technical reserves - private pension  (249,067)   (185,948) 

3.02 Empresas.Net Cost of Products and Services Sold  (8,561,712)   (7,893,038) 

 
Insurance  (8,463,425)  (7,803,078) 
Private pension (62,096)  (66,779) 
Savings bonds  (27,800)  (15,811) 
ASO  (6,580)  (4,481) 
Asset management (1,811) (2,862) 
Other operating expenses - (27) 

3.04.02 Empresas.Net General and Administrative Expenses (814,378) (774,792) 
    Administrative Expenses   (814,378)   (774,792) 
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1.2.  Statements of Financial Position and Statements of Income Required from 
Companies that Operate Insurance, Private Pension and Saving bonds 

Sul América S.A and Subsidiaries
Statements of financial position as at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017

(in thousands of Brazilian reais - R$)

Notes 06/30/2018 12/31/2017

Assets

Current assets 17,422,343                    17,014,304                    

Cash and cash equivalents 7 1,604,996                      640,955                         
Marketable securities 8 12,923,219                    13,478,203                    
Receivables 9 2,027,818                      1,974,166                      
Taxes 10.1 130,501                         225,348                         
Reinsurance assets 11 38,927                          25,167                           
Salvages for sale - 49,082                          51,103                           
Deferred acquisition costs 12 617,324                         596,212                         
Other - 30,476                          23,150                           

Non-current assets 6,647,083                      6,435,214                      

Marketable securities 8 1,172,476                      1,146,975                      
Receivables 9 810,108                         718,433                         
Escrow deposits 20.1 2,887,600                      2,856,362                      
Reinsurance assets 11 8,944                            7,700                            
Deferred acquisition costs 12 540,615                         498,117                         
Taxes 10.1 867,741                         796,027                         
Other - 5,046                            3,001                            
Investments 13 76,998                          132,217                         
Fixed assets - 55,663                          59,072                           
Intangible assets 14 221,892                         217,310                         

Total assets 24,069,426                    23,449,518                    

Consolidated

 
 
 

Sul América S.A and Subsidiaries
Statements of financial position as at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017

(in thousands of Brazilian reais - R$)

Notes 06/30/2018 12/31/2017

Liabilities and equity

Current liabilities 8,815,116                      8,803,882                      

Accounts payable 15 1,504,720                      1,705,982                      
Loans and financing 16 135,594                         299,988                         
Insurance and reinsurance liabilities 18 310,233                         289,943                         
Technical reserves - Insurance 19 6,793,936                      6,422,085                      
Provision for lawsuits 20.2 62,719                          78,252                           
Other - 7,914                            7,632                            

Non-current liabilities 9,390,262                      9,005,245                      

Accounts payable 15 31,490                          32,470                           
Loans and financing 16 1,325,527                      1,284,545                      
Technical reserves - Insurance 19 5,613,807                      5,325,999                      
Provision for lawsuits 20.2 2,402,340                      2,341,295                      
Other - 17,098                          20,936                           

Equity 5,864,048                      5,640,391                      

Capital 22.1 3,319,882                      3,319,882                      
Reserves 22.2 2,408,533                      2,411,321                      

Capital reserves - 373,835                         376,623                         
Earnings reserves - 2,034,698                      2,034,698                      

Treasury shares 22.4 (99,632)                         (107,087)                        
Equity adjustment 22.3 (41,547)                         (1,254)                           
Profit/Loss - 276,812                         -                                
Non-controlling interests 4 -                                17,529                           

Total liabilites and equity 24,069,426                    23,449,518                    

Consolidated
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Sul América S.A. and Subsidiaries
Statements of income for the six-and three-month periods ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

(in thousands of Brazilian reais - R$)

1º semestre2018 2º trimestre2018 1º semestre2017 2º trimestre2017

Notas 1º semestre 2º trimestre 1º semestre 2º trimestre

Net operating revenue 9,856,990               5,085,608               8,619,002               4,357,884               

Insurance 9,450,278               4,878,195               8,266,361               4,182,506               

Net premiums 24 9,447,719               4,875,751               8,248,184               4,179,771               
Other - 2,559                     2,444                     18,177                    2,735                     

Private pension 307,881                  156,679                  261,468                  128,924                  

Premiums, retained contributions and net asset management fee 25 307,378                  156,421                  260,908                  128,636                  
Other - 503                        258                        560                        288                        

Savings bonds 29 27,106                    13,992                    26,760                    12,355                    

ASO 30 29,749                    14,688                    25,543                    14,243                    

Asset management 31 24,211                    13,225                    20,444                    10,754                    

Other - 17,765                    8,829                     18,426                    9,102                     

Changes in premium technical reserves - (310,826)                 (256,830)                 (21,551)                   (35,451)                   

Insurance 26 (61,759)                   (129,185)                 164,397                  51,377                    
Private pension 26 (249,067)                 (127,645)                 (185,948)                 (86,828)                   

Operating expenses (8,561,712)              (4,332,235)              (7,893,038)              (4,034,641)              

Insurance (8,463,425)              (4,275,749)              (7,803,078)              (3,989,941)              

Claims 27.1 (7,300,345)              (3,715,179)              (6,689,952)              (3,450,608)              
Acquisition costs 27.2 (915,622)                 (458,549)                 (872,674)                 (429,596)                 
Other 27.3 (247,458)                 (102,021)                 (240,452)                 (109,737)                 

Private pension (62,096)                   (32,296)                   (66,779)                   (35,513)                   

Benefit expenses 28.1 (45,211)                   (24,078)                   (51,040)                   (27,563)                   
Acquisition costs 28.2 (15,635)                   (7,712)                    (14,771)                   (7,329)                    
Other - (1,250)                    (506)                       (968)                       (621)                       

Savings bonds 29 (27,800)                   (19,256)                   (15,811)                   (5,090)                    

ASO 30 (6,580)                    (4,004)                    (4,481)                     (2,366)                    

Asset management 31 (1,811)                    (930)                       (2,862)                     (1,713)                    

Other - -                         -                         (27)                         (18)                         

Gross operating margin - 984,452                  496,543                  704,413                  287,792                  

General and administrative expenses 32 (814,378)                 (434,013)                 (774,792)                 (365,302)                 

Net investment income 33.1 313,069                  168,178                  436,736                  212,625                  

Equity interest income 13 16,893                    7,454                     18,636                    9,601                     

Net non-operating income - 6,148                     2,466                     3,829                      1,952                     

Income before tax and social contribution 506,184                  240,628                  388,822                  146,668                  

Income tax and social contribution 34 (228,938)                 (105,407)                 (178,307)                 (65,169)                   
Net income 277,246                  135,221                  210,515                  81,499                    

Net income attributable to:

Owners of the Company - 276,812                  135,392                  209,193                  80,589                    

Non-controlling interest - 434                        (171)                       1,322                      910                        

Net income - 277,246                  135,221                  210,515                  81,499                    

Basic earning per share attributable to shareholders 22.6

Preferred shares 0.2384 0.1165 0.1926 0.0694
Common shares 0.2382 0.1165 0.1927 0.0694
Diluted earning per share attributable to shareholders 22.6

Preferred shares 0.2350 0.1148 0.1897 0.0683
Common shares 0.2365 0.1156 0.1912 0.0688

Consolidated

2018 2017
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2. Arbitration Chamber 

 
The Company, its shareholders and managers are bound by arbitration of the Market’s Arbitration Chamber, as provided for by Article 
47 of its Bylaws. 

 

2.1. Appendix III – Shareholders owning more than 5% of common or preferred 
shares 

Ranking of Shareholders owning more than 5% of common or preferred shares, includind individuals 
As of June 30, 2018 

(In shares) 

 Sul América S/A 

Shareholder   
Common 

shares   %   
Preferred 

shares   %   Total shares   % 
Sulasapar Participações S.A. 297,826,465   50.81    49,589   0.01  297,876,054   25.61  
International Finance Corporation   19,717,201    3.37    39,434,402    6.83    59,151,603    5.09  
Swiss Re Direct Investments 
Company Ltd 58,764,180   10.02  117,528,360   20.38  176,292,540   15.16  
Others 209,872,194   35.80  419,744,448   72.78  629,616,642   54.14  
Subtotal   586,180,040     100.00    576,756,799   100.00    1,162,936,839   100.00  
Treasury stock 6,508,353 13,016,711 19,525,064 
Total   592,688,393       589,773,510       1,182,461,903     

 

 

 
Distribution of corporation's capital stock (shareholders' company), including individuals 

As of June 30, 2018 
(In shares) 

 Sulasapar Participações S/A 

 
Shareholder   

Common 
shares   

%   
Total shares   

% 

Sulasa Participações S.A. 2,509,326 100% 2,509,326 100% 
Subtotal   2,509,326   100%   2,509,326   100% 
Ações em Tesouraria   796,082       796,082     
Total   3,305,408       3,305,408     

 

 

 

Distribution of corporation's capital stock (shareholders' company), including individuals 
As of June 30, 2018 

(In shares) 

 Sulasa Participações S/A 

 
Shareholder   

Common 
shares   %   

Preferred 
shares   %   Total shares   % 

Sularis S.À.R.L.  1,876,169,956  16.67   3,752,339,908  16.67   5,628,509,864  16.67  
Sulaver S. À R.L.    1,876,169,956    16.67     3,752,339,908    16.67     5,628,509,864    16.67  
Patrick Antonio Claude de 
Larragoiti Lucas  1,876,169,956  16.67   3,752,339,908  16.67   5,628,509,864  16.67  
Ema Mercedes Anita Sanchez de 
Larragoiti   -     -     46      0.00      46      0.00  
Sulemisa Participações Ltda.  2,814,254,934  25.00   5,628,509,839  25.00   8,442,764,773  25.00  
Sultaso Participações Ltda.    2,814,254,934    25.00     5,628,509,839    25.00     8,442,764,773    25.00  
Total   11,257,019,736    100.00     22,514,039,448    100.00     33,771,059,184    100.00  
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2.2.  Appendix IV – Controlling shareholders, management and free float position 

 

 
Controlling shareholders, management and free float position 

As of June 30, 2018 

  
Common 

shares   %   
Preferred 

shares   %   Total shares   % 

Controlling shareholders 306,307,600 52.25  17,011,865 2.95  323,319,465 27.80  
Management                         
Board of Directors 40,677  0.01  81,354  0.01  122,031  0.01  
Officers   542,990   0.09    1,085,980    0.19    1,628,970    0.14  
Free float 279,288,773 47.65  558,577,600 96.85  837,866,373 72.05  
Subtotal   586,180,040    100.00    576,756,799   100.00    1,162,936,839    100.00  
Treasury stock   6,508,353       13,016,711       19,525,064     
Total   592,688,393       589,773,510       1,182,461,903     

 

 

3.   Compliance with CVM Instruction No. 381 of January 14, 
2003 

 
On October 28, 2014, Sul América S.A. and its subsidiaries engaged Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Auditores Independentes to provide 
external audit services related to the audit of its financial statements (individual and consolidated) over a period of five years. 

  
During the six months ended June 30, 2018, Deloitte did not provide services other than external audit to the Company and its 
subsidiaries. 

  
SulAmérica has a policy on related party transactions available on the website www.sulamerica.com.br/ri. During the six months ended 
June 30, 2018, no transaction between Deloitte and SulAmérica was made that could be classified as related party transaction. 
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(Convenience Translation into English from the Original Previously Issued in Portuguese) 

REPORT ON REVIEW OF INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

To the Shareholders, Board of Directors and Management of 
Sul América S.A. 
Rio de Janeiro - RJ 

Introduction 

We have reviewed the accompanying, individual and consolidated, interim financial information 
of Sul América S.A. (the “Company”), included in the Interim Financial Information Form (ITR), 
for the three-months period ended June 30, 2018, which comprises the balance sheet as of 
June 30, 2018 and the related income statement and statement of comprehensive income for 
the three and six-months periods then ended and statement of changes in equity and 
statement of cash flows for the six-months period then ended, including the explanatory notes. 

Management is responsible for the preparation of the individual and consolidated interim 
financial information in accordance with CPC 21 (R1) – Interim Financial Reporting and in 
accordance with IAS 34 - Interim Financial Reporting, issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB), as well as for the presentation of such information in accordance with 
the standards issued by the Brazilian Securities Commission (CVM), applicable to the 
preparation of Interim Financial Information Form (ITR). Our responsibility is to express a 
conclusion on this interim financial information based on our review. 

Scope of review 

We conducted our review in accordance with Brazilian and international standards on review of 
interim financial information (NBC TR 2410 and ISRE 2410 – Review of Interim Financial 
Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity, respectively). A review of 
interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily to persons responsible for 
financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A 
review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with the standards 
on auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become 
aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not 
express an audit opinion. 

Conclusion on the interim financial information 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the 
accompanying individual and consolidated interim financial information included in the ITR 
referred to above is not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with CPC 21 (R1) and 
IAS 34 applicable to the preparation of Interim Financial Information Form (ITR) and presented 
in accordance with the standards issued by the Brazilian Securities Commission. 
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Other matters 

Statements of value added 

We have also reviewed the individual and consolidated statements of value added (“DVA”), for 
the six-months period ended June 30, 2018, the presentation of which is required by the 
standards issued by CVM applicable to the preparation of Interim Financial Information Form 
(ITR), and is considered as supplemental information for IFRS that does not require the 
presentation of DVA. These statements were subject to the same review procedures described 
above and, based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe 
that they are not prepared, in all material respects, in relation to the interim financial 
information taken as a whole. 

The accompanying interim financial information has been translated into English for the 
convenience of readers outside Brazil. 

Rio de Janeiro, July 31, 2018 

DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU Roberto Paulo Kenedi 
Auditores Independentes Engagement Partner 
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SUL AMÉRICA S.A. 

Brazilian Registry of Legal Entities (CNPJ/MF) No. 29.978.814/0001-87 
 

Register Number Identification Number (NIRE) 3330003299-1 
 

Publicly-held Company with Authorized Capital 
 

 

Officers’ Statement about the Financial Statements: 

The statutory officers of Sul América S.A., a publicly-held company with authorized capital, with registered office in the City of Rio de 

Janeiro, registered with the Brazilian Registry of Legal Entities (CNPJ/MF) under the No. 29.978.814/0001-87, pursuant to the terms of 

item VI, paragraph 1, of article 25 of CVM Instruction 480 of December 7, 2009, state that they reviewed, discussed and agree with the 

Company’s financial statements for the period ended June 30, 2018. 
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SUL AMÉRICA S.A. 

Brazilian Registry of Legal Entities (CNPJ/MF) No. 29.978.814/0001-87 
 

Register Number Identification Number (NIRE) 3330003299-1 
 

Publicly-held Company with Authorized Capital 
 

 

Officers’ Statement about the Auditor’s Report: 

The statutory officers of Sul América S.A., a publicly-held company with authorized capital, with registered office in the City of Rio de 

Janeiro, registered with the Brazilian Registry of Legal Entities (CNPJ/MF) under the No. 29.978.814/0001-87, pursuant to the terms of 

item V, paragraph 1, of article 25 of CVM Instruction 480 of December 7, 2009, state that they reviewed, discussed and agree with the 

opinions issued in the report of the independent auditors of the Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Auditores Independentes, on the 

Company’s financial statement for the period ended June 30, 2018. 




